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*
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member of the Finance Committee.
member of the Property & Operations Committee.
member of the Education Committee.
member of the Development Committee.
member of the Safeguarding Committee.
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REFERENCE AND ADMINISTRATIVE DETAILS (continued)
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Dulwich College is descended from the College of God’s Gift founded at Dulwich in 1619 by Edward Alleyn.
The College is a company limited by guarantee and a registered charity. It operates under a scheme made by the Charity
Commission on 30 January 2013, which regulates the College as a charity, defines its charitable object and specifies the
constitution, powers and duties of the Governors.
The College is the corporate trustee of Dulwich College Trust, which administers certain endowment assets and funds. Dulwich
College Trust is a subsidiary charity of the College which is subject to a uniting direction and has a charity registration number
1150064‐1. The College is also the corporate trustee of the Dulwich College Awards Fund, which is also subject to a uniting
direction and has a charity registration number 1150064‐13. Neither Dulwich College Trust nor Dulwich College Awards Fund is
required to prepare separate financial statements.
Organisation
The College has a governing body consisting of not less than nine and not more than fourteen Governors, who are the directors
of the company and the trustees of the charity.
The full Board of Governors meets at least three times a year.








The Finance Committee of the Board meets three times a year and advises the Board on financial matters.
The Property & Operations Committee meets three times a year and advises the Board on property and operations
matters.
The Education Committee meets three times a year to consider the curriculum and other academic matters and advises
the Board on education matters.
The Safeguarding Committee meets twice a year to consider safeguarding matters.
The Development Committee meets termly to consider fundraising matters.
A Chairs group (comprising the Chair and Vice‐Chair of Governors, the Master, the Chief Operating Officer and the chair
of each committee and subsidiary board) meets at the beginning of each term to review the key matters and projects
for the College that term and to ensure that matters requiring the attention of Governors that term are duly considered.
The Nominations Committee (comprising the Chair and Vice‐Chair of Governors and the Master as ex officio members
plus at least two co‐opted Governors) meets termly and assists the Board with the recruitment of new Governors.

The Master is the chief executive of the College and is responsible for the implementation of the strategy and policy approved by
Governors. He is assisted by the College Leadership Team (which consists of the Master, the four Deputy Masters, the Chief
Operating Officer, the Director of Finance, the Clerk to the Governors and the Director of Communications), the Senior
Management Team (which consists of the nine previously mentioned executives, the five Heads of School and the Director of
Development) and the Education Leadership Team (which consists of the Master, the Deputy Master Academic and the five Heads
of School). The College aims to provide salaries and allowances for senior managers and other staff that are in line with peer
schools and similar organisations. These are benchmarked against surveys and other relevant market data from time to time.
The College provides information to its employees on the staff intranet (MyDulwich). Communication with staff is also conducted
through mid‐morning whole staff announcements from the Master and senior colleagues (twice a week, with key messages
repeated by e‐mail), at regular but less frequent intervals through committees of teaching and operational staff and through the
Master’s addresses to all staff.
The College provides employment, training and development to disabled persons on the same basis as to its other employees.
Recruitment and Training of Governors
Governors are appointed by the Board in accordance with the College’s Articles of Association. They are normally appointed for a
five year term of office and most Governors serve two such terms. No fee or other remuneration is payable to Governors, other
than reimbursement, if claimed, of reasonable costs incurred in attending meetings. A Governor who is disqualified from acting
under the Charities Act 2011, or is absent without good cause from all meetings of the Governors for twelve consecutive months,
or notifies the Governors in writing of a wish to resign, ceases to be a Governor.
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In appointing new Governors the Nominations Committee first reviews the skills and experience available among serving
Governors. Having identified the skills and experience required, the committee recommends to the governing body suitable
candidates for appointment. The Board looks to have a diversity of Governors and to have among the Governors Old Alleynians
(former pupils of the College), parents or former parents and local residents.
All new Governors are invited to spend an induction day at the College, which includes meetings with Senior Management Team
members. Newly appointed Governors are given written briefing material on the duties of a Governor and on the College and its
operations and are briefed on the College’s financial position by the Chair of the Finance Committee and the Director of Finance.
Each Governor is invited at least once a year to spend a half‐day visiting departments within the College (both academic and
operational) in order to extend their knowledge of the College and its staff.
All Governors are encouraged to undergo relevant training (including safeguarding training). Training is provided to the full Board
on their strategy days.
The College has taken out trustee indemnity insurance. This covers claims made against the College in respect of Governors’
liability arising from any negligent act, error or omission committed in good faith. The premium for the insurance is included in
the College’s public liability premium.
Group Structure and connected charities
Dulwich College is one of the beneficiaries of The Dulwich Estate, whose charitable purpose is to support the work of its beneficiary
charities. The other beneficiaries comprise the Chapel, the Almshouses, the Central Foundation Schools, St Olave’s and St
Saviour’s, as well as Alleyn’s School and James Allen’s Girls’ School (JAGS). Each of the charities in the group is managerially and
financially independent. The scheme establishing The Dulwich Estate in its current form provides for two of its trustees to be
nominated by the College. All of those beneficiaries receive an income distribution from The Dulwich Estate each year. The share
for all three Dulwich Schools is allocated in proportion to the number of pupils in each school. The College devotes its entire
income from the Estate to the provision of bursaries. The Estate also owns the freehold of some of the College’s operational
properties for which the College pays rent. Other than in its role as landlord the Estate does not have any influence on the
operations of the College.
The College has two wholly owned trading subsidiaries, Dulwich College Enterprises Limited (DCE) and Dulwich College Enterprises
Overseas Limited (DCEO). There is more information about DCE and DCEO later in this report.
OBJECT, AIMS, OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES
Charitable Object
The charitable object of the College is the advancement of education of children for the benefit of the public by:
(a)

the conduct at Dulwich of a day and boarding school for boys (called Dulwich College), in which there shall be provided a
practical, liberal and religious education and which may include a preparatory department and, if thought fit, the
provision of a pre‐preparatory school for boys and girls; and

(b)

the provision and support of other educational institutions and activities in Dulwich and elsewhere in the United Kingdom.

Aims
The College’s principal aims, as enunciated in the Strategic Development Plan, 2010‐2019 (SDP) and in its 2015‐2019 update are:
 to ensure that all our pupils feel equally secure and valued;
 to offer academic challenges that enable each pupil to realise his potential;
 to provide sporting, cultural, charitable and adventurous engagement for all our pupils to enjoy and through which they
can learn to work co‐operatively and to lead;
 to nurture a supportive community that encourages a sense of social responsibility.
It is also the College’s responsibility to enable Alleynians to be thoroughly well prepared for the challenges of the 21st century.
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OBJECT, AIMS, OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES (continued)
Objectives for the year
The Governors’ objectives for the year under review were:
 to maintain and improve the academic standards of the College;
 to fund all necessary works on the College’s campus and be able to fund development, while at the same time keeping
fees at an appropriate level and ensuring a proper level of reward for employees;
 to promote open access to the College by maintaining and where possible increasing the availability of bursaries;
 to ensure that all the College’s facilities were properly maintained, notably with regard to standards of Health and Safety
and compliance;
 to continue to undertake building and maintenance work in accordance with the Master Plan for the site;
 to ensure the improvement of the provision of education over the course of the coming decade, in line with the aims
expressed in the SDP;
 to promote partnerships between the College and the local community, particularly the community of schools in
Southwark and Lambeth;
 to assist central and local government partners by lending the College’s expertise to academies;
 to provide necessary support to the College’s international schools in the Far East; and
 to ensure that the College abides by all appropriate safeguarding rules and practice.
Strategies to achieve the year’s objectives
The Governors’ strategies for achieving these objectives during the year have been:
 to monitor the academic achievements of the College and to engage with the Master and his colleagues on developments
in the curriculum;
 to monitor the financial performance of the College;
 to approve a budget for the year which balances expenditure (particularly proper rewards for staff, the need to fund the
necessary works on the campus and the need for a surplus sufficient to support the SDP, including the Master Plan for
the site) against the pressure that fee increases can put on some fee payers in the difficult economic climate;
 to build the Bursary Appeal Fund and thereby increase the College’s bursary provision;
 to generate additional income through DCE’s commercial activities and DCEO’s overseas operations;
 to continue to upgrade the College’s infrastructure and services identified as being a high priority, with a focus on Health
and Safety and teaching and learning;
 to support the Master and his colleagues in their work with the local community;
 to build relationships with major players in the development of new initiatives in education;
 to support the work being done by the Master and Deputy Master External to develop educational links with the local
community of schools in Southwark and Lambeth and with our international schools; and
 to monitor that safeguarding practice is being properly carried out.
Principal activities for the year
Education ‐ The education of pupils in the broadest sense has been the principal activity during the year. In addition to its core
academic activities the College has provided a wide range of sporting, musical, dramatic, artistic, supra‐curricular1 and co‐
curricular pursuits. The College has sought to attract pupils from a variety of backgrounds and has made grants in the form of
bursaries to this end. The Educational Leadership Team (ELT) has maintained its programme of regular lesson observations and
the checking of Schemes of Work of all academic departments and has provided extensive feedback. The College has led and
contributed to a significant number of educational initiatives outside the College, both locally and more widely.

1

supra‐curricular is the exploration of a pupil’s chosen subject through wider reading and other related activities beyond their
GCSE and A Level curricula
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OBJECT, AIMS, OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES (continued)
Principal activities for the year (continued)
Free Learning ‐ The concept of Free Learning (learning beyond the curriculum) continues to be fully embedded in the life of the
College, manifested most clearly in Dulwich Creative weeks, whose origins were a week‐long initiative in November 2014, which
brought together Art, Drama, Music and DT in a series of workshops, masterclasses, visits, seminars, concerts, exhibitions,
discussions and performances for all pupils (Dulwich College Kindergarten and Infants’ School (DUCKS) included) to draw out and
showcase their creative talents. 2016‐17’s Free Learning Week was Dulwich Linguistic, which saw the whole College crossing
frontiers into the languages and cultures of countries beyond the English‐speaking world. Further examples of Free Learning could
be seen in the sixth Upper School Symposium (an off syllabus day for all Upper School boys and guests from partner SSLP schools)
on the subject of Sound, in the Junior School Symposium on Pattern and Chaos with girls from JAPS (James Allen’s Girls’
Preparatory School), the now annual Free Learning days in the Junior, Middle and Lower Schools and the continued engagement
of every boy in the Union of Societies. Upper School Physicists represented the UK at the International Young Physics Tournament
in Russia, one pupil was runner‐up in the prestigious Corpus Christi Essay Competition and seven Upper School boys finished in
the top 10 in the Student Robotics competition. Other highlights include:
Music ‐ In November the 100th Foundation Schools’ Lunchtime Concert was performed in Christ’s Chapel. In the spring, forty boys
toured Washington DC, Pennsylvania and New York performing a series of concerts, including the world premiere performance of
De Profundis (Night Raid) by the College’s resident composer Cecilia McDowall.
Drama ‐ Lower School and Upper School productions of Private Peaceful and Grease, the latter with girls from JAGS, saw sell‐out
audiences and selected scenes from Grease were, by popular demand, performed again at Founder’s Day.
Art ‐ ‘Creative Matters’, a curated exhibition with the Royal College of Art (RCA), saw Alleynians engaging with an ‘isolation booth’,
gender‐blending jewellery, coding and museums of techno realism. The first of our annual residential trips to Europe was launched
with twenty four students visiting Berlin and at the film awards at Dulwich Picture Gallery, adjudicated by Amy Campbell Golding
on behalf of Film Aid International, four awards were presented to Alleynians.
Sport ‐ The three College Water Polo teams reached the National Finals, with the U15s awarded a bronze medal. The U11s Swim
Relay Team became National Champions IAPS (Independent Association of Prep Schools). One Alleynian rowed for England and
another won gold with the GB team. The U15s Rugby sevens team, unbeaten in 21 straight games, became Surrey Champions.
Debating ‐ Invited to represent Team London, three Alleynians were winners of the fifth Annual Old Parkland Debates in Texas,
USA. The School Captain, for the second year, led Team England at the Schools’ World Championships and was ranked first as a
speaker out of 460 competitors from 52 countries..
CCF ‐ Dulwich College CCF were the LONDIST Guthrie Cup competition winners 2017 (Army), Cadet Cambrian Patrol Competition
silver medal winners 2016 (Army) and Air Squadron Trophy Competition winners 2016 (RAF).
Our outstanding new building, The Laboratory, completed in June 2016, designed to support and celebrate the importance of
Science and Art and which responds specifically to the needs of ‘good learning’ for the 21st century, has become central to the
life of the College. The use of The Laboratory for educational and community partnership activities has already been significant:
 Science partnership events such as the Ogden Trust Primary Science Day, Physics Partners and use by partner schools such
as St. Thomas the Apostle College to enable Sixth Form science practicals;
 An MFL (Modern Foreign Languages) Conference for primary and secondary (maintained and independent) teachers, a
collaborative venture with City Heights E‐ACT Academy, the College’s educational partnership school;
 The weekly Saturday School (Southwark Community Education Council) Year 6 Scheme with its Science focus;
 A programme of Free Learning lectures to which educational partner schools are invited;
 Art Exhibitions with educational partnership schools including Variations on a Theme, an exhibition of the drawings and
paintings of Sixth Form art students from Dulwich College and The Charter School;
 The GE Moore Lecture Series, part of the 400th anniversary celebrations ‐ a series of evening lectures, which are open to
the public and have been attended by hundreds of visitors;
 Dulwich Literary Festival ‐ lectures and book readings by authors, open to the public, over a November weekend, in
collaboration with the local independent book store, which welcomed over 1,350 visitors from the local and wider
community;
 The James Caird ‐ throughout the academic year, the College offers regular free visits by schools and researchers and
interested members of the public to view the James Caird, Ernest Shackleton's rescue boat, housed in the James Caird Hall of
The Laboratory.
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OBJECT, AIMS, OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES (continued)
Charities Act 2011 and public benefit
The Governors are cognisant of their responsibilities in providing public benefit. The College continues to demonstrate a significant
number of areas of public benefit within its core charitable objective of conducting at Dulwich a day and boarding school for boys
in which there is provided a practical, liberal and religious education. The identifiable benefits include the provision of means‐
tested bursaries, which totalled £2,737,000 in the year, the provision of subsidised access to College facilities for community and
educational purposes to the value of £97,000, pupil fundraising for external charities to the value of £25,000 and a significant
number of community and partnership activities involving current students and staff. The key elements of these activities and
their relation to the College’s educational and charitable mission are set out in the community activities section of this report.
Grant making policy
The College grants bursaries to provide financial support to parents whose sons have been awarded a place at the College but
who cannot afford full tuition fees. Bursaries are funded by the College’s Bursary Appeal Fund or by the income distributions from
The Dulwich Estate. The bursaries granted, in addition to entry bursaries, include temporary help where there has been a family
problem, such as the death of a parent. Generally the College will seek to support a boy, during the examination years in particular,
when this happens.
College scholarships are awarded at entry points. These are largely academic but there are also scholarships for Sport, Music
and Art. College scholarships are not means tested but a number of scholarships go to boys who would otherwise receive
bursaries.
STRATEGIC REPORT
ACHIEVEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE
Operational performance
The extent to which the College achieves its aims cannot be measured by examination results alone. There is a range of indicators
(not all measurable in quantitative terms) which show how well the College is providing an academic environment in which pupils
acquire a good work ethos and a love of learning; an appropriate academic challenge which enables each pupil to realise their full
potential; a wide range of activities through which pupils can develop a breadth of interests and learn to work co‐operatively; a
caring, supportive and well‐ordered environment in which pupils from a variety of backgrounds can feel secure and equally valued
and an ethos which encourages spiritual and personal development.
The main academic key performance indicators are the percentage of entries at A Level achieving grades A*, A or B and the
percentage of entries at GCSE level achieving A*, A or B grades. The College aims to maintain at least 90% of entries at A Level
achieving grades A*, A or B and 95% of entries at GCSE level achieving A*, A or B grades. These are demanding performance
indicators given the large size of year groups at the College and the absence of less challenging subjects in the curriculum. In 2017
87% of entries achieved A*, A or B grades at A Level and 98% of entries at GCSE level achieved A*, A or B grades.

7

DULWICH COLLEGE
REPORT OF THE GOVERNORS (continued)
YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2017

ACHIEVEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE (continued)
Operational performance (continued)
The percentages, compared with the percentages achieved in the previous four years, are set out in the table below.

Entries at A Level achieving A*
Entries at A Level achieving A* or A
Entries at A Level achieving A*, A or B
Entries at GCSE achieving A*
Entries at GCSE achieving A* or A
Entries at GCSE achieving A*, A or B

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

28%
68%
91%
52%
83%
97%

26%
62%
89%
55%
87%
98%

32%
63%
86%
54%
86%
97%

26%
63%
90%
55%
86%
98%

31%
64%
87%
59%
88%
98%

The College’s financial performance is measured against the budget for the year through termly management accounts which
compare actual and budgeted income and expenditure and which forecast the result for the year. The College’s budget for the
year includes income from its trading subsidiaries, DCE and DCEO and the performance of DCE and DCEO is continuously
monitored. Governors are alerted quickly to any material variances from budget.
Apart from the main academic performance indicators, the performance of the College is also measured using a number of other
indicators, which are based on on‐going assessment of the College’s educational and charitable objectives and financial
constraints. The table below compares performance in the year under review with performance in the previous four years (all the
indicators exclude the DUCKS kindergarten).

Pupil numbers
Fee increases
Day/boarding split
Pupil/teacher ratio
Average direct teaching cost per teacher

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

1,675
5.5%
11.9:1
9.4:1
£88,000

1,664
4.75%
12.2:1
9.2:1
£89,000

1,703
5.75%
12.1:1
9.4:1
£93,000

1,751
4.75%
12.6:1
9.3:1
£94,000

1,736
3.75%
12.7:1
9.0:1
£95,000

In the year under review, as well as delivering £1,847,000 (2016: £2,445,000) of specific minor buildings projects, the College
invested £1,110,000 to connect the two separate boarding buildings on the north of the South Circular, £1,513,000 on Barry
Buildings external works and £2,499,000 on Barry Buildings internal works. The connecting link between Orchard and Old Blew
House and the new Common Room was completed at the end of the year under review and has significantly improved boarding
facilities and the cohesion of this boarding house. Refurbishment of the exterior of the Barry Buildings was on track at the end of
the year for completion in February 2018. These works were essential to make the masonry and terracotta safe and to ensure the
fabric of the building was refurbished and fit for use for future generations. The Barry Building internal refurbishment work has
progressed in phases, one floor at a time, with Phase One, the ground floor classrooms of North Block, being completed at the
end of this reporting year. This provides thoroughly modernised classrooms and a new Language Laboratory for MFL, which
beautifully maintains the heritage of the original classrooms in a modern environment providing the very best facilities for
teaching. Phase Two will deliver Centre Block classrooms and upgraded pupil toilets. The remaining floors will be completed in
successive phases thereafter, with the project due for completion in late 2018.
As well as the investment in major capital projects, a 10‐year maintenance plan is in place to ensure a budgeted schedule of
progressive maintenance and upgrades to buildings and facilities over the coming years. A condition survey has been completed
to determine and plan for the investment required over the next 50 years to maintain the College buildings.
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ACHIEVEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE (continued)
Operational performance (continued)
Significant investment continues to be made into the development of the IT network and infrastructure, bringing all the College’s
extensive and complex systems up to a high quality, modern standard. Further upgrades are required to bring equipment
replacement cycles up to the industry standard. The extent of modernisation and the breadth of the College’s vision for IT in
support of teaching and learning has been recognised in the award of Microsoft Showcase School status, one of only a very few
UK independent schools to win this award.
More information about the College’s performance, with appropriate statistics, is published annually in the Master’s report.
Copies of this report are available on the College website at www.dulwich.org.uk.
The Governors believe that the College’s good performance during the year was the result of a number of factors including the
excellence of the teaching provided by the teaching staff, the support provided by the operational staff and the initiative and
energy shown by the Master and his management team. The income distribution by The Dulwich Estate continues to support the
College’s charitable objects. The full amount of this income is used to fund means‐tested bursaries at the College and is most
welcome.
Bursaries
The Governors pay particular attention to the College’s means‐tested bursary provision. The table below shows the main
indicators used to measure performance.

Total number of bursaries
Number of 100% bursaries
Number of 75% to 100% bursaries
Percentage of boys in Year 7 and above receiving bursaries
Bursaries as a % of gross fees in Year 7 and above
Scholarships provided to boys with bursaries as a % of
gross fees in Year 7 and above
Total bursaries and related scholarships as a % of
gross fees in Year 7 and above
Total bursaries and related scholarships as a % of
total gross fees

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

160
21
61
12.0%
7.2%

158
19
68
11.8%
7.3%

153
28
77
11.2%
7.5%

165
36
94
11.5%
7.9%

162
44
106
11.4%
8.4%

0.5%

0.6%

0.6%

0.4%

0.4%

7.7%

7.9%

8.1%

8.3%

8.8%

7.1%

7.1%

7.4%

7.8%

8.0%

Value of bursaries (see Note 2a) to the financial statements on page 27):
Bursaries funded from general funds
Scholarships provided to boys with bursaries
Total bursaries funded by the College from general funds
Bursaries funded by the Bursary Appeal Fund
Total value of bursaries

£1,563,000 £1,630,000 £1,845,000
£132,000
£150,000
£162,000
£1,695,000 £1,780,000 £2,007,000
£226,000
£238,000
£244,000
£1,921,000 £2,018,000 £2,251,000

£2,105,000
£120,000
£2,225,000
£310,000
£2,535,000

£2,262,000
£118,000
£2,380,000
£357,000
£2,737,000

The totals of bursaries include scholarships provided to boys with bursaries on the basis that if they hadn’t been awarded
scholarships, then they would have received bursaries instead.
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ACHIEVEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE (continued)
Bursaries (continued)
The College aims to promote open access and therefore welcomes increases in the numbers of bursary holders and the value of
bursaries provided year by year. The 162 bursaries provided during the year enabled boys whose parents could not otherwise
afford to send them to the College to take advantage of its facilities. Since its inception the Bursary Appeal Fund has contributed
a total of £2,995,000 towards bursaries awarded at the College. Bursaries are funded either from the College’s Bursary Appeal
Fund or from the income distributions from The Dulwich Estate.
During the year a total of 496 bursaries and scholarships were provided amongst 437 boys. Some 30.6% (2016: 30.4%) of boys in
Year 7 and above received assistance with fees from bursaries and scholarships. The total value of bursaries, scholarships and
prizes amounted to £3,650,000 (2016: £3,408,000) and represented 10.8% (2016: 10.4%) of gross fees for the year.
Community activities
Strategy and rationale
Community partnership initiatives are a key component of the College’s Strategic Development Plan and are strongly supported
by the College Leadership Team and governing body. The College’s ongoing engagement with the community, reflecting its
heritage and philanthropic tradition, is embodied in the College’s commitment to two‐way educational partnership with the
maintained sector and a strong ethos of responsibility towards the wider community.
Partnership initiatives are appraised by a Partnerships Committee each term to ensure maximum impact and complement the
College’s strategic mission to expand access to a Dulwich education. At the start of the academic year 2017‐18 a total 173 boys
were receiving bursarial support and 62 of these were receiving 100% bursaries, a further increase on the figures for 2016‐17
shown in the bursaries section of this report. The College is an accredited school of the Royal National Children’s Spring Board
Foundation, and senior staff work closely with its partner organisations in support of three Sixth Form boarding students who
receive full remission of full day and boarding fees and subsidised participation on College trips.
The following were the seven key elements of this strategy during 2016‐17:
1. Educational partnership with City Heights E‐ACT Academy (CHEA) in Tulse Hill
The College has been the Educational Partner to City Heights E‐ACT Academy since 2013. Support for the academy has taken
place in the following areas:
 The Deputy Master External is a trustee of E‐ACT Multi‐Academy Trust. His overall commitment to E‐ACT amounts to
approximately 25 days each year.
 Year 10 and 11 students at the College act as reading mentors for Year 7 and 8 at CHEA and Mathematics mentors for
Year 7 and Year 10 Gifted and Talented students.
 The Deputy Master Academic and the Director of Modern Foreign Languages (MFL) have been instrumental in developing
the National MFL School‐centred initial teacher training (SCITT) in partnership with Silverdale School and Sheffield Hallam
University, helping to promote and design the course and formulate the documentation for other schools to adapt. Two
SCITT trainees embarked on their training at the College in collaboration with CHEA in September 2017.
 Twenty Academy students participated in Dulwich Linguistic, the College’s whole‐school free learning week, in November
2016 and in our Engineers Day; they also organised a Portuguese stand at our International Day in April 2017, for which
the College provided a budget and prizes.
 The MFL departments also collaborated on Modern Languages and the Road Ahead, a conference of primary and
secondary teachers on 4 July 2017, opened by local MP Helen Hayes and attended by 90 delegates. The Head of MFL at
City Heights wrote: ‘The INSET was beautifully organised and inspirational’. The College also funded the day release fee
of the keynote speaker.

10

DULWICH COLLEGE
REPORT OF THE GOVERNORS (continued)
YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2017

ACHIEVEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE (continued)
Community activities (continued)




The Deputy Master External chairs the Academy’s Academy Ambassadorial Group (AAG). This comprises parents and
members of the local community and has a remit of celebrating students’ achievements, developing the Academy’s links
with the local community and resolving concerns and complaints.
A Year 13 leaver with an interest in teaching was successfully interviewed for the gap‐year position of Academy Assistant.
The schools’ senior management teams met for a joint session on special educational needs and disability (SEND) in
December 2016 and subject leaders from Creative and Performing Arts, Humanities, Mathematics and English have met
for mutual lesson observations and discussion of the new GCSE specifications.

It is envisaged that the opening of a Sixth Form at the Academy in September 2018 will represent a further opportunity for
collaboration with City Heights and the South London Six (SL6) schools.
2. Support for Southwark Community Educational Council (SCEC) and its twelve participating primary schools
The College continues to support this charitable trust in the provision of a free Saturday School experience for some 60 students
in Year 6 from twelve participating state primaries in the borough of Southwark. The participating primary schools are as follows:
Bessemer Grange; Dog Kennel Hill; Dulwich Wood; Goose Green; Heber; Ivydale, Rye Oak; St Anthony’s RC; St Francesca Cabrini;
St John’s RC in Rotherhithe; St John’s & St Clement’s; and St Joseph’s RC. The College’s scheme aims to increase students’
confidence ahead of their transition to a variety of secondary schools across the borough. Over the previous year the College’s
trustees have also prepared for a refocusing of the scheme from September 2017 to enable each student to receive 36 hours of
free Science enrichment sessions over Michaelmas and Lent terms in the College’s laboratories.
The College provides, free of charge, facilities, equipment and refreshments; a fully trained member of staff to oversee the
programme every Saturday morning; one day each week of administrative support; payroll services for the three educational
schemes operated by SCEC; and some twenty Year 12 and 13 student mentors. Approximately 20% of the participating students
are on Pupil Premium. The annual cost of the College’s support for the SCEC is £13,000; in 2016‐17 the College incurred £2,000 of
additional expenditure in its funding of an external review of the scheme and new Science‐based resources. Year 12 and 13
students provide weekly support to these classes.
3. Co‐directorship of Southwark Schools’ Learning Partnership (SSLP)
The College continues to play a significant part in SSLP, a scheme involving 13 schools – 10 from the maintained sector, an increase
from 8 in 2015‐16, and the 3 Foundation Schools – which runs a series of projects for students and joint Continuing Professional
Development (CPD) for staff. In addition to the Master’s role as co‐director, the College provides a member of staff who acts as
the main link for the SSLP. The College also provides office facilities for a term‐time administrator.
See http://sslp.education for SSLP projects over the last year. The College’s Art Department has invited partners to six Private
Viewings, giving students the opportunity to showcase their work to a wider audience. Five lectures featuring guest speakers (two
geographical, one historical, one mathematical and one political) have been opened up to older students engaging those
interested in these subjects. Full‐day interactive sessions were hosted by the College for students interested in Modern Foreign
and computer programming Languages, giving an opportunity for collaborative learning. A highlight of the SSLP year was the Glee
Day hosted at a partner school with the support of College staff and involving seven different schools. The College facilitated a
CPD session for language teachers from across the partnership to explore together the current Spanish A Level syllabus and
examination structure. The College has also been able to introduce Stuart Horne bursaries for four SSLP students to attend
Outward Bound Canada. It has also donated eight fume cupboards to the Chemistry Departments of its partner SSLP schools.
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4. Student involvement in community action
140 students, supported by approximately 20 members of staff, participate in ‘Community Action’ projects, 12 of which are
external to the College:
 Athol House Residential Care Home
 Brixton and West Norwood Foodbank (on Saturday mornings)
 Dulwich Hamlet Junior School – Mathematics and Literacy Club for Year 6
 Dulwich Park – gardening scheme
 Dulwich Wood Primary School – reading mentors for Years 2 and 5
 Ebony Horse Club in Brixton
 The Hollington Youth Centre in Camberwell – Gold Duke of Edinburgh Award holders support its Bronze group
after school
 Judith Kerr Primary School – after‐school clubs and mentors in lessons taught in German
 Rosendale Beavers and Scouts (on Wednesday evenings)
 Southside Young Leaders’ Academy ‐ sports and educational activities sessions (on Saturday mornings)
 Streatham Wells Primary School ‐ an afterschool club where Dulwich students support staff and students in
activities such as crafts, homework help and sports
 Turney School – classroom assistants for children with SEND.
College students also participated with two girls from Harris Academy East Peckham in ‘Visual to Vocal’, a collaboration between
musicians from English Touring Opera and Dulwich Picture Gallery, between March and June 2017. The Director of Public
Engagement at Dulwich Picture Gallery wrote: ‘Your students are absolutely critical to the success of the project given some of
the impairments the older participants have’. The Gallery’s Community Engagement Manager added: ‘The boys made a very
significant (and spirited) contribution and the feedback from participants was hugely complimentary’. Year 12 Art students also
participated for 3 days in Judith Kerr Primary School’s Art Week in June.
College students raised over £25,000 for the following charities during 2016‐17: Jeans for Genes; Spires; Wildlife Vets
International; the Brixton and Norwood Food Bank; the Macmillan Coffee Morning; Papyrus; the Wings of Hope Achievement
Award; the ROAR Challenge; Comic Relief; Evelina Children's Hospital; RSPB Save the Albatross campaign; St Christopher’s
Hospice; Macmillan Cancer; Mystart and Save the Children.
5. Enrichment partnership activity
The College provides staffing for the 25th Camberwell Scouts and Dulwich Explorers, comprising 15 Cubs, 75 Scouts and 55
Explorers. This is an ‘open’ Scout group: 10% of Cubs and Scouts are non‐Dulwich pupils and at Explorer age this increases to 50%.
The College also provides, free of charge: premises, minibuses, marketing support and printing and an annual budget of £1,000.
In November to December 2016 College staff provided 39 mock interviews for those applying to Oxbridge and for Medicine from
the maintained sector, including from the Charter School, St. Thomas the Apostle College, City of London Academy and Archbishop
Tenison’s School. Advice on personal statements was also provided for these students. College staff have also provided advice on
6 projects submitted for Mark Evison Foundation Schools Awards by students from: Haberdasher’s Aske’s Hatcham College;
Kingsdale School and St. Paul’s Way Trust.
The College is a member of and provides support for the Southwark Teaching Schools Alliance (STSA). The College’s Staff Tutor
has engaged with the Institute of Education (IoE) to pilot a Lesson Study project with other STSA schools led by the IoE; and
has hosted groups of Schools Direct trainee primary teachers on one‐day visits from their STSA schools to observe twelve Key
Stage 3 lessons as ‘secondary experience’ necessary for their training, assisting primary trainees in becoming outstanding teachers
and leaders. College staff were also invited to carry out one‐day faculty peer reviews for the City of London Academy in French,
Geography, Mathematics and PE; and a member of the Physics department spent a day in Woodlane High School, Shepherd’s
Bush, in support of the school’s Science programme.
DULWICH COLLEGE
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The College has become an Institute of Physics ‘Hub’ School in London, hosting and co‐funding seven Stimulating Physics Network
Days for 50 secondary school teachers and technicians. The Physics Department also provides teachers in support of the London
branch of the charity Physics Partners (www.physicspartners.com). Between February and July eight members of the Physics
department and two technicians provided four INSET events for the schools of the Harris Foundation to assist with the delivery of
the Key Stage 4 and Key Stage 5 syllabus and its core practicals; as a centre for the Institute of Physics it also delivers twice‐termly
CPD events. 22 Year 12 and 13 students from Haberdasher’s Aske’s Hatcham College and Elmgreen School completed 6 core
practicals at the College in March 2017. The Physics Department has also provided weekly teaching to Gifted and Talented students
in Years 9, 10 and 11 at Bonus Pastor Catholic College in Lewisham and hosted a Weizmann safecracking technical day for London
schools. The College has developed a partnership with the Ogden Trust and Ogden Primary Science programme. The College will
host an Ogden Trust Primary Science Day in November 2017 and it is envisaged that the College will become an Ogden Primary
Science Hub in 2017‐18. Our most recent Ogden Sixth Form Scholar will complete his A levels in June 2018.
The Biology Department has run a weekly Liberal Studies ‘Science Roadshow’ programme taking Year 12 students to demonstrate
science experiments and showcase the College’s collection of preserved animals, spending afternoons in each of the following
primary schools: Bessemer Grange, Dulwich Hamlet, Dulwich Wood, Elm Wood, Kilmorie, Rosendale, Sandhurst, St. John’s, and
Streatham Wells. College staff have continued to provide two‐day Biology trips workshops at the London School of Hygiene and
Tropical Medicine in support of start‐up A levels at St. Thomas the Apostle College, Peckham. The Economics Department
organised and hosted an Interest Rate Competition for Year 12 students from St. Olave’s Grammar School, Orpington and a lecture
by Dom Cummings attended by Year 12 students from Addey and Stanhope School, New Cross.
The English Department runs a joint creative writing workshop with the Charter School, involving Year 12 students. Meetings
happen twice a term and there is an annual summer off‐timetable day. Sixth‐form students from Archbishop Tenison’s School in
Kennington were invited to the College’s History Society and after‐school Oxbridge provision.
The Mathematics Department provided six one‐hour weekly revision classes in the Lent and summer terms to fifteen Year 11
students from the Elmgreen School in Tulse Hill who were predicted to get close to C grades at GCSE. This was followed by three
sessions at the end of the summer term to fifteen Year 10 students, discussing topics at and beyond the higher end of GCSE.
The MFL Department has facilitated the following resources: a 'Languages in the Classroom' module for students at Queen Mary
University of London; a free primary school teacher from Délégation Académique aux Relations Européennes et
Internationales (DAREIC) for Michael Faraday Primary School, Walworth; 22 shared sessions of Arabic tuition for students from
the Charter School; 35 sessions of Chinese tuition at Kingsdale School; Spanish interns for oral tuition at City of London Academy;
and online audio‐visual aids to support the teaching of German at KS3 and KS4 in the maintained sector.
The Head of Wellbeing collaborated with St. Martin’s Academy, Tulse Hill, as part of the implementation of a wellbeing programme
throughout the school.
The Music Department has organised an annual series of events for the local community, including ten services each year in
Christ’s Chapel sung by the College Chapel Choir, a Wednesday lunchtime concerts series running from October to March, and a
Christmas lunch for the residents of the Dulwich Almshouses. SEND students from Turney School also visited the pipe organ in the
Old Library as part of a music project.
In Sport, the College administers, hosts and provides staffing for: Southwark Schools Athletics Days, involving 700 local students
from twelve maintained sector schools; Gipsy Hill Foundation Athletics Days, involving 1,000 local students from Years 1 to 6;
Overload U10 Football tournament, during which twenty two local schools played on the College grounds in a tournament run by
staff and A Level students, with members of the 1st XI football refereeing; and an U12 Football Tournament for six local schools; a
primary school swimming gala involving 140 students from local state schools. The College has also provided U14 football fixtures
for University Academy of Engineering South Bank and facilities for a ten‐week Marylebone Cricket Club Hub Foundation involving
45 maintained sector students from South London.
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The College’s Courses and Careers Convention in February 2017 was attended by the following schools: Sacred Heart (30 students
with 2 staff members); the Charter School (30 students plus 1 staff member); St Thomas the Apostle (30 students plus 1 staff
member). Each visitor school was also allocated a parent place for each pupil place and 68 visitor school parents attended. The
Head of Sixth Form Designate from City Heights also attended to assist in planning for the launch of their Sixth Form. A Chemistry
Networking event in September 2017 was attended by 12 students from the Charter School; and a Finance Networking event in
May 2017 was attended by the Charter School (15 students); Elmgreen School (9 students); and St Thomas the Apostle (12
students). All students received training before these events from the College’s Careers staff.
The College hosted the annual Dulwich Schools’ Debating Competition involving 130 students from eighteen different schools in
a full day of debating. In March 2017 Year 12 and Year 13 students also hosted a lunch and coaching workshop for 20 Year 10
students from City Heights and Crest (Neasden) E‐ACT Academies to prepare them for a debate to be held in the Palace of
Westminster.
6. Community access to facilities
The College’s purpose‐built Laboratory of 21 laboratories and a lecture theatre serves as a hub for partnership and community
activities, such as: hosting the inaugural CREST Awards (the presentation of science, technology, engineering and mathematics
projects with the British Science Association); ‘Variations on a Theme’, an exhibition of the drawings and paintings of Sixth Form
art students from the College and the Charter School; the G.E. Moore lecture series of evening lectures; and the Dulwich Literary
Festival, attended by over 1,350 visitors from the local and wider community; and the Mystart charity exhibition ‘Going Nowhere’
hosted by the Art Department in conjunction with a major fundraising initiative organised by boys.
Dulwich College is the official partner of the Dulwich Literary Festival sponsored by Dulwich Books and affords the festival free use
of all its public spaces. The festival attracts over 1,000 people to events at the College over the course of a weekend in November.
Free or substantially reduced tickets are made available to pupils from schools of the Southwark Schools’ Learning Partnership.
The College has provided subsidised facilities for the sports days of the following schools: City Heights E‐ACT Academy; St.
Antony’s; Corpus Christi; City Heights E‐ACT Academy; Elmgreen; Newlands Academy; Rotherhithe Primary Schools; Southwark
Cubs; St. George’s; Streatham Wells.
The College’s James Caird forms part of the Key Stage 2 curriculum for Southwark primary schools and between September 2016
and June 2017 19 classes from eight local primary schools were given a tour of the Archive by College staff. One headteacher
wrote: ‘The trip to the College is one of the highlights of the children’s study of Antarctica and Shackleton and we greatly
appreciate the lengths you have gone to accommodate us’. The Archives has also hosted 9 Dulwich Discovery days. Researchers
are able to consult the Archive free of charge on Wednesdays in term time. Between September 2016 and June 2017 the Archive
was open for 27 days (for 5 hours) for this purpose and hosted 116 researchers. The Archive has also hosted three group tours
from the Worshipful Company of Educators and Eton College, and two seminars for Sixth Form English classes from the Charter
School, viewing the Henslowe/Alleyn theatre papers as background to their Shakespeare studies. During the academic year 2016‐
17 60 members of the public were also given tailored tours and presentations of the Fellows’ Library.
Over the last twelve months, the College has provided facilities gratis or at heavily subsidised rates for the following: the British
Horn Society; Concordia; the Dulwich Club; the Dulwich Literary Festival; the Dulwich Quilter's Exhibition; Kent Junior Chess
Association; Kingfisher’s Quiz Night; The National Children's Choir of Great Britain Auditions (3 days); SE22 Piano School; Rugby
Football Union Teacher Development Day; South London Scouts Awards Ceremony; the Spring Board Bursary Foundation; and St.
Christopher’s Hospice Quiz. In September 2016 the College hosted both the two‐day graduation ceremony of the National Citizen
Service and the annual Spring Board Fellowship Event for all Spring Board pupils and their parents and, in April 2017, the first three
days of a Conservation Optimism summit organised by the University of Oxford’s Interdisciplinary Centre for Conservation Science,
the Zoological Society of London and Durrell Wildlife Conservation Trust. The College also served as a polling station for the
General Election in June.
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7. Staff voluntary and trustee work
The College Leadership Team strongly supports the involvement of staff in voluntary work in the educational sector as a
fundamental part of its charitable mission. The Master is a trustee of the Blackbird Academy Trust, a three primary school Trust
on the Blackbird Leys estate in Oxford, the Mark Evison Trust and the Art Room. He also provides strategic advice and support for
Inspiring Futures and Dulwich Picture Gallery. In addition to his trusteeship of E‐ACT Multi‐Academy Trust, the Deputy Master
External is a trustee of Trinity Academy in Brixton. He and the Head of Junior School are trustees of SCEC and, with the Clerk to
the Governors, provide ongoing educational and legal advice for this charity throughout the year.
College staff are governors/trustees of the following schools and educational charities: Dulwich Hamlet Educational Trust, which
governs Dulwich Hamlet Junior School and the Belham Primary School; the Hayes Primary School, Croydon; the Hollington Youth
Centre; Raglan Primary School, Bromley; Judith Kerr Primary School; and the Livity School, Streatham.
The Director of Drama sits on Shakespeare’s Globe Council and is Vice‐Chair of the Rose Theatre Trust. The Director of Academic
Drama continues as a board member of Young Pleasance and is also a member of the Board of Trustees for the Arts Educational
Schools
Two College staff act as team managers for the Southwark boys’ athletics teams at the London Schools’ athletics championships.
The Director of MFL is a trustee of Speak to the Future (the Campaign for Languages) and the Chartered Institute of Linguists. He
is also Vice Chair of the London Branch of the Association of Language Learning and has provided 3 INSET training sessions for 100
maintained‐sector teachers and 100 ‘Routes into Languages’ Language Ambassador Graduates at UCL. He is also engaged in
maintained school liaison for the Sir Robert Taylor Society and provides strategic advice and practical support for Confucius
Institute of Business, London.
As part of the College’s 125‐year old link with the Hollington Youth Centre, staff and students have supported its members in
achieving the Bronze Duke of Edinburgh Award by enabling them to attend a four‐day training camp and Qualifying Expedition.
The Marketing and Communications Department has also provided ongoing marketing and communications support for the Youth
Centre.
Commercial activities
The commercial activities of the College are operated through its wholly owned trading subsidiaries, DCE and DCEO. DCE manages
the College’s UK commercial activities. DCEO manages the College’s overseas commercial interests.
There are a number of separate departments within DCE: Events (which lets out College facilities), the Commissariat (the school
shop), the Sports Club, the Outdoor Centre and the Foundation Coach Service.
The overseas business of DCEO involves the licensing of the College’s name and intellectual property to DCMI, which runs
international schools in China (Shanghai, Beijing and Suzhou), South Korea (Seoul), Singapore and Myanmar. Besides these schools,
DCMI also operates two Dulwich High Schools in China for Chinese students. The two Dulwich High Schools work in partnership
with established Chinese schools: Suzhou High School and Yung Wing School in Zhuhai. The opening of the second campus in
Shanghai (Minhang), was delayed until 2017 and work also continued in Myanmar to open the second, Star City, campus in Yangon
in September 2017. At the same time, extensive work was carried out to establish another school in Shanghai Minghang, delivering
a new Chinese curriculum in an all‐through Chinese school, another school known as Dehong, opening to new students in
September 2017.
The overseas business generates an income from royalty fees based on a proportional share of the international schools’ total fee
income, excluding the two high schools, a per pupil per term fee for the high schools and a fixed annual fee for each school. The
arrangements are governed by a World Charter signed in August 2014.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
The accounts for the year reflect the income generated and the expenditure incurred by the College and its subsidiary companies
in the year.
General fund income increased from £38.3 million to £39.6 million, reflecting a 3.75% increase in tuition fees from September
2016. General fund expenditure increased from £34.2 million to £35.6 million, reflecting an increase in staff costs of 4.7% from
£24.0 million to £25.2 million, which incorporated a minimum pay award of 1.25% from September 2016 for all permanent staff.
As a result, the surplus before transfers on the general fund decreased by £96,000 to £4,008,000.
Total income increased from £40.3 million to £44.8 million, including the capital endowment distribution from The Dulwich Estate
of £3.6 million in the year. Excluding the capital endowment distribution, total income increased from £40.3 million to £41.2
million, reflecting the £1.4 million increase in general fund income and a £0.5 million decrease in restricted donations received.
The College had total net incoming resources of £6,248,000, which was £2,952,000 ahead of the previous year. Excluding the
capital endowment distribution, however, net incoming resources decreased by £646,000 from £3,296,000 to £2,650,000,
reflecting the increase of £0.9 million in total income excluding the capital endowment distribution, the £1.4 million increase in
general fund expenditure and a £0.1 million increase in restricted fund grants, awards and prizes. The net incoming resources
contributed to the funding of £7.0 million of capital expenditure in the year.
Governors are particularly grateful to The Dulwich Estate for their substantial annual income distribution of £2.4 million. This has
been used by the College to fund its means‐tested bursaries provision.
Generally, the Governors believe that the College is in a strong financial position to meet its future plans and commitments. The
Masterplan for the site in particular is modular in nature and individual projects can be rescheduled or deferred if money is not
available in later years.
The net assets of the College are financed by the endowment fund, by other restricted funds and by unrestricted funds which have
accumulated over the years in line with the College’s policy of generating a modest surplus from its operations each year to fund
on‐going developments. The total funds of the College have increased in the year from £57.0 million to £68.4 million. This reflects
the net incoming resources of £6.2 million, gains on investments of £2.6 million and an actuarial gain on the pension scheme of
£2.5 million.
The movement in fixed assets during the year is shown in note 10 to the financial statements on page 36.
The Governors are satisfied with the current and ongoing financial position of the College.
Asset cover for Funds
Note 19 to the financial statements on pages 41 to 43 sets out an analysis of the College’s assets attributable to the various funds.
These assets are sufficient to meet the College’s obligations on a fund by fund basis.
Reserves Policy
Details of the funds and the movements on them in the year are shown in note 19 to the financial statements on pages 41 to 43.
Free reserves are defined by the Charity Commission as total funds less endowment, restricted and designated funds, pension
reserves and unrestricted funds which could only be realised by disposing of tangible fixed assets. At 31 July 2017 the College had
unrestricted funds of £0.1 million (excluding designated funds and pension deficit). Taking into account the operational fixed
assets (net of related loans) of £4.2 million, it had negative free reserves of £4.1 million. This is consistent with previous years and
Governors regard the reserves position as appropriate in view of the College's SDP and, in particular, the Masterplan for the site.
The Masterplan for the site sets out projects over the years leading up to the College’s 400th anniversary in 2019 and beyond, as
necessary. Whilst the College does not currently have the resources required to fulfil the entire plan it is aiming to generate and
acquire such resources during the period of the plan.
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A major use of additional unrestricted funds generated over the period of the Masterplan will be to provide funds for the new
projects. These funds will not increase the level of free reserves of the College as they will be primarily represented by fixed
assets. In addition, it is expected that the timing of the funds generated will match the timing of the capital expenditure; thus
leaving minimal additional free reserves at any stage over this period.
The Governors believe that the College is able to operate with a deficit on free reserves and wish to continue expanding the
facilities of the College through increasing surpluses. In assessing the viability of the College’s financial plans and strategies the
Governors consider more appropriate indicators such as cash flow and working capital requirements and the impact on operating
surpluses.
The College participates in a defined benefit pension scheme administered by the London Pensions Partnership, which at the
balance sheet date showed a deficit of £13.7 million (2016: £15.1 million). The Governors note this deficit, which is further
analysed in note 20 to the financial statements on pages 44 to 46. The College closed the Scheme to new members on 31 July
2010. The Governors are aware that the deficit on the scheme will fluctuate with changing market conditions and that their
responsibility is to meet the required contribution rates, which are built into the annual budgetary processes of the College. They
do not consider this deficit to represent an immediate demand on the College’s funds and do not, therefore, consider that there
are any resultant limitations on resources available for general application or on the application of any restricted income funds.
The restricted income funds have limitations that mean that they cannot be used to contribute towards any additional resource
requirements of the College’s unrestricted funds arising from the pension scheme deficit.
The College’s major restricted and designated funds comprise the Dulwich College Awards Fund and the Bursary Appeal Fund.
The income arising on these funds is applied to bursaries, scholarships and other awards in line with the College’s grant making
policy described on page 7.
This policy is monitored by the College’s Finance Committee and reviewed annually. In particular the policy will be re‐evaluated if
additional free reserves become available.
Dulwich College Enterprises Limited and Dulwich College Enterprises Overseas Limited
DCE and DCEO are wholly owned subsidiaries of the College, responsible for non‐charitable operations. The results of DCE and
DCEO are consolidated in the financial statements of the College set out on pages 23 to 49.
During the year under review DCE returned £616,000 (2016: £653,000) to the College and DCEO returned £1,349,000 (2016:
£1,128,000), including rent, management charge and royalties.
Investment Policy
The majority of the College’s investments are held in the Dulwich College Investment Fund (DCIF), a fund managed by investment
managers on behalf of the College. The investment managers during the year were BlackRock Investment Management (UK)
Limited (BIML) and Veritas Investment Management (Veritas), BIML managing approximately 60% of the fund and Veritas 40%.
The College also has a small holding in an agricultural unit trust held in the Dulwich Schools Common Investment Fund (DSCIF), a
pooled fund managed by Baring Asset Management Limited on behalf of the College, Alleyn’s School and James Allen’s Girls’
School. DSCIF and its corporate trustee, Dulwich Services Limited, will be wound up once the future of this holding has been
resolved.
Most of the College’s investments held outside DCIF and DSCIF are invested in funds managed by the investment managers of
COIF, CAF, Charinco and Charishare, apart from £2,148,000 of Bursary Appeal Fund investments under the discretionary
management of Ruffer LLP (Ruffer), a fund manager with an absolute return approach to investment, thus diversifying the risk
inherent in the College’s portfolio.
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Other than the funds under the management of Ruffer, the funds in the Bursary Appeal Fund and the Dulwich College Awards
Fund are held in regulated collective investment schemes. New money, other than that which may be allocated to Ruffer, is
usually invested in the ratio 70:30 in schemes mainly invested in equities and funds invested in fixed interest securities
respectively, although the Governors may vary this split if they deem it in the interests of the College to do so. The overall objective
is to maximise the income return from the sums so invested whilst maintaining the real value of the capital. The balance of
investments is also assessed with a view to limiting potential volatility. The Governors believe that this gives the liquidity and
certainty of income needed to fund bursaries and scholarships as they fall due, with the prospect of capital growth.
Investment performance
The Governors have approved investment guidelines, including asset allocation, for the Dulwich College Investment Fund (DCIF).
To reflect these guidelines, the performance benchmark for that part of DCIF managed by BIML is: 70% FTSE All‐Share Index; 22.5%
FTSE Govt. All Stocks Index and 7.5% Merrill Lynch Euro Sterling Fund. The performance benchmark for that part of DCIF managed
by Veritas is: 90% MSCI World Equities and 10% FTSE Govt. All Stocks Index. Currently the Governors have not imposed any
restriction on the type of sector or individual companies in which DCIF may invest. An income target is set annually.
The College’s investment objectives for DCIF are to maximise investment income while at least maintaining the value of the fund
in real terms.
In the 12 months to 31 July 2017 the investments of DCIF under the management of BIML had a total return of 12.7% against a
benchmark return of 9.8%. The investments of DCIF under the management of Veritas had a total return of 10.2% against a
benchmark return of 14.9%. The investments under the management of Ruffer had a total return of 3.5%. Since Ruffer follow an
absolute return approach, focused on the preservation of capital and with a long‐term focus, the portfolio is necessarily
unbenchmarked.
Risk Management
The Master and the College Leadership Team review risk to the College through regular review of a comprehensive risk assessment
document, which identifies the major risks to which the College is exposed, the likelihood of the risks occurring and the impact
they would have on the College.
The Governors consider the major risks facing the College to be: major child protection issues; cashflow sensitivities; budgetary
control and financial reporting; non‐compliance with law and/or regulatory requirements; a major adverse change in parent or
public perception of the College; and the inability to operate due to health, safety and environment issues, serious fraud or error,
the fulfilment of contracts for major projects, unsatisfactory returns from fundraising and the inability to borrow or service
borrowing. The Governors have identified and monitor on‐going controls to mitigate the risks and specific actions to be taken in
each year.
The key controls in response to these major risks include: an appropriate recruitment policy (including staff vetting), staff code of
conduct, safeguarding policy and whistleblowing policy; staff training; segregation of duties with appropriate delegation of
budgetary responsibility and expenditure authorisation procedures; an appropriate governance structure; appropriate skills
amongst Governors and the College Leadership Team; rigorous forecasting with decisions about budgets and major projects based
on the impact on the forecasts; monitoring of management accounts and key performance indicators; benchmarking; use of
professional advice; obtaining regular feedback from parents and pupils; effective communications with stakeholders and health
and safety monitoring and reporting.
As part of the Governors’ annual review, the risk assessment document was presented to the Governors for their review and
approval in December 2016. This was followed in the Summer term 2017 by a report to the Finance Committee on implementation
and confirmation from the Chief Operating Officer that the College Leadership Team believed that the College’s risk management
controls were appropriate and effective.
DULWICH COLLEGE
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REPORT OF THE GOVERNORS (continued)
YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2017

FUTURE PLANS
The College has continued to deliver against the Strategic Development Plan launched in 2010 and reviewed in 2015. At the
beginning of the academic year 2017‐18 there is a plan for the College Leadership Team to review and update the SDP to review
progress against budget and planned timescales and to determine the major actions arising for the College as it approaches its
400th anniversary and, equally importantly, for the period beyond 2019.
The educational focus of the work will continue to be structured around three elements:


the Primacy of the Classroom within a holistic and creative education;
The Master and Governors believe that a Dulwich education is based on the provision of a breadth and balance of
opportunities for all pupils, in and beyond the classroom, which includes an engagement with Free Learning, the promotion
of creativity and the affording of opportunities for pupils to have a say in the exploration and development of educational
initiatives. The provision of stimulating teaching and learning is the priority alongside researching how best boys can be
educated in a single sex environment, while preparing them for the world of gender equality. The work of the Wellbeing
programme will continue to support pupils and staff across the College.



preparation for life after Dulwich;
Pupils will engage in thinking about their futures from an early age, supported by the Careers department and their tutors.
Dulwich’s international dimension, stimulated by our strong partnerships with the schools of Dulwich College International
and our links with other schools and organisations abroad, is significant to the preparation of pupils for life after school.



benefiting the community (which includes a determination to extend access to the benefits of a Dulwich education);
The College is a community in itself and has responsibilities beyond its gates to the wider local community, which can be seen
in the College’s increasingly strong educational partnerships. There is a clear commitment throughout all elements of the
College community, ahead of the 400th anniversary in 2019, to sponsor a ‘New Dulwich Experiment’ to ensure easier and
greater access to the College for pupils whose families would not otherwise be able to afford a Dulwich education.
Opportunities for engagement with projects for the public benefit will be developed throughout the College, with many
initiatives introduced, led and accomplished by the pupils.

The implementation of the 2011 architectural Masterplan from John McAslan + Partners (and further developed with a
Supplement to the Masterplan by Grimshaw & Partners) to create a campus for the College’s current and future needs will
continue in order to foster and enhance the learning and development of Alleynians both in and beyond the classroom. Work will
be undertaken specifically on the Barry Buildings (internal and external) and the landscape of the campus to enhance the physical
environment.
In addition, work will continue on the implementation of an IT infrastructure appropriate to the developing needs of the College
in the 21st century; the communication and marketing of the College to build further the College’s reputation and to ensure the
most able boys and their families are attracted to all the College has to offer.
Financial support will be seen: in the continued implementation of the fundraising strategy led by the Master and Director of
Development; by maximising revenue generation from the commercial hire of the College facilities in support of its educational
aims; and through DCEO and DCMI, where we are creating the best of British education overseas, enhancing the Dulwich brand
worldwide and securing a substantial and reliable annual income to support Alleynians now and in the future.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS OF DULWICH COLLEGE

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of Dulwich College for the year ended 31 July 2017 which comprise the Consolidated
Statement of Financial Activities, the Group and Parent Charitable Company Balance Sheets, the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement and the related notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that
has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting
Standard 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice).
In our opinion, the financial statements:
• give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent charitable company’s affairs as at 31 July 2017 and
of the group’s and parent charitable company’s net movement in funds, including the income and expenditure, for the
year then ended;
• have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
• have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable company's members those
matters we are required to state to them in an Auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charitable company and the charitable company's members
as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our report. We are independent of the group in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Responsibilities of Governors for the financial statements
As explained more fully in the Statement of Governors’ Responsibilities, the Governors (who are also the directors of the charitable
company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied
that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Governors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the Governors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent charitable company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the Governors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent charitable company or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.
A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s
website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.
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DULWICH COLLEGE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
(incorporating an income and expenditure account)
YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2017

Notes

Unrestricted Funds
School
Other
£
£

Restricted
Funds
£

Endowment
Funds
£

Total
2017
£

Total
2016
£

INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS FROM:
Charitable activities
Fees receivable
Grants, awards and prizes
Net fees receivable
Catering income
Other income
Other trading income
Lettings, events and sports club
income
Transport and commissariat income
International schools income
Voluntary income
The Dulwich Estate distributions
Donations received
Investments
Listed investments
Bank and other interest

2
2

5

33,512,540
(3,207,111)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
30,305,429
1,518,124
214,254

‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
‐
‐
‐

33,512,540
(3,207,111)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
30,305,429
1,518,124
214,254

32,440,748
(3,014,788)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
29,425,960
1,561,969
207,743

1,666,216

‐

‐

‐

1,666,216

1,575,770

1,307,225
1,422,578

1,259,945
1,211,031

1,307,225
1,422,578
3

2,396,138
186,207

‐
‐

‐
774,676

3,597,700
445,015

5,993,838
1,405,898

2,383,230
1,778,053

4

571,496
42,544
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
39,630,211
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

315,894
1,895
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
1,092,465
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
4,042,715
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

887,390
44,439
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
44,765,391
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

827,136
90,543
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
40,321,380
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

1,244,768
1,355,118
83,681
415,140
472,770
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
3,571,477
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

1,244,768
1,355,118
83,681
415,140
472,770
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
3,571,477
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

1,125,252
1,276,507
88,180
400,124
531,435
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
3,421,498
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

21,987,983
2,041,253
6,919,218
1,102,334
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
32,050,788
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
35,622,265
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

41,794
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
41,794
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
41,794
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

‐
‐
‐
‐
443,138
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
443,138
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
443,138
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

‐
‐
2,410,518
‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
2,410,518
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
2,410,518
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

22,029,777
2,041,253
9,329,736
1,102,334
443,138
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
34,946,238
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
38,517,715
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

21,111,860
2,132,111
8,876,273
1,090,213
393,416
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
33,603,873
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
37,025,371
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

4,007,946

(41,794)

649,327

1,632,197

6,247,676

3,296,009

‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
4,007,946

‐
31,048
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
(10,746)

‐
51,022
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
700,349

(149,173)
2,710,410
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
4,193,434

(149,173)
2,792,480
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
8,890,983

(349,062)
1,598,350
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
4,545,297

Total income and endowments
EXPENDITURE ON:
Raising funds
Lettings, events and sports club costs
Transport and commissariat costs
International schools costs
Fundraising costs
Finance costs

9

Charitable Activities
Teaching costs

Welfare and catering costs
Premises costs
Boarding and medical costs
Grants, awards and prizes

Total expenditure

2

8

Net income before investment
gains/(losses) and transfers
Realised losses on investments
Unrealised gains on investments
Net income before transfers

11
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DULWICH COLLEGE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (continued)
(incorporating an income and expenditure account)
YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2017

Unrestricted funds
School
Other
£
£

Net income before transfers

Restricted
Funds
£

Endowment
Funds
£

Total
2017
£

Total
2016
£

4,007,946

(10,746)

700,349

4,193,434

8,890,983

4,545,297

Transfers between funds

19

(5,100,075)

266,163

(1,120,688)

5,954,600

‐

‐

Pension scheme actuarial gains/
(losses)

20

2,526,000
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
1,433,871

‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
255,417

‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
(420,339)

‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
10,148,034

2,526,000
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
11,416,983

(4,622,000)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
(76,703)

19

(15,009,345)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

413,777
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

456,778
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

71,090,229
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

56,951,439
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

57,028,142
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

£(13,575,474)
============

£669,194
=========

£36,439
==========

£81,238,263
============

£68,368,422
=============

£56,951,439
=============

NET MOVEMENT IN FUNDS
Funds brought forward at 1 August
FUNDS CARRIED FORWARD
AT 31 JULY

All the above results are derived from continuing activities. There are no gains or losses other than those stated above.

No separate income and expenditure account as required under the Companies Act 2006 has been presented, as the only
difference between the net incoming resources for the year before investment gains and transfers (£6,247,676) and the net
income for the year as defined by the Companies Act (£2,204,961) is the deduction of capital distributions and donations to the
College’s endowment funds amounting to £4,042,715.
The notes on pages 27 to 49 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DULWICH COLLEGE
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2017

2017
£
Operating activities (Note A)
Investing activities
Investment income and interest received
Cash inflow from redemption of investments
Payments to acquire tangible fixed assets
Payments to acquire investments

2016
£

£

10,435,302

931,829
4,670,000
(6,524,207)
(7,149,510)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

7,435,790

917,679
3,280,792
(7,708,277)
(4,577,792)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
(8,071,888)

Financing activities
Interest paid
Repayment of loans

(415,949)
(744,451)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

Increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

£

(1,160,400)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£1,203,014
===========

(8,087,598)
(445,231)
(707,191)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

(1,157,422)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£(1,804,230)
===========

Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

Bank and cash
Bank overdraft

At 31 July
2017
£

At 31 July
2016
£

8,843,350
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£8,843,350
============

7,408,814
(268,478)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£7,140,336
============
2017
£

Note A

2016
£

Net cash inflow from operating activities
Surplus for the year
Investment income and interest receivable
Interest payable
Depreciation charge
Pension costs

Decrease in stock
(Increase)/decrease in debtors
Increase in creditors

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 August
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 July
26

6,247,676
(931,829)
415,949
3,442,990
1,093,000
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
10,267,786

3,296,009
(917,679)
445,231
3,320,526
716,000
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
6,860,087

(21,572)
48,808
140,280
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£10,435,302
============

229
(40,006)
615,480
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£7,435,790
============

7,140,336
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£8,843,350
===========

8,944,566
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£7,140,336
===========

DULWICH COLLEGE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2017

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

a)

Statement of compliance
The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention as modified to include the revaluation
of investments. The format of the financial statements has been presented to comply with the Companies Act 2006,
FRS102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Ireland and the Statement of Recommended
Practice Accounting and Reporting by Charities (“SORP 2016”). The College is a Public Benefit Entity as defined by
FRS102.

b)

General information
The College is a company limited by guarantee, incorporated in England and Wales (company number: 08208764)
and a charity registered in England and Wales (charity number: 1150064). The College’s registered office address is:
Dulwich College, Dulwich Common, London SE21 7LD.

c)

Basis of Accounting
The financial statements have been prepared under the Companies Act 2006 on the historical cost convention as
modified by the valuation of fixed asset investments at fair value, which is consistent with the prior year.

d)

Basis of Consolidation
These financial statements consolidate the results, assets and liabilities of the College’s trading subsidiaries (Dulwich
College Enterprises Limited and Dulwich College Enterprises Overseas Limited) and of the College’s subsidiary
charities (Dulwich College Trust and Dulwich College Awards Fund) on a line by line basis.
The College’s own Statement of Financial Activities has not been presented, as permitted by section 408 of the
Companies Act 2006.

e)

Going concern
The Governors consider that there are no material uncertainties which would cast doubt on the College’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

f)

Significant judgments and sources of estimation uncertainty
The preparation of financial statements in compliance with FRS 102 requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise judgment in applying the College’s accounting policies. The key
judgements that have been applied by management relate to:



The selection of useful economic lives for tangible fixed assets.
The selection of actuarial assumptions which underpin the valuation of the assets and liabilities of the defined
benefit pension scheme.
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DULWICH COLLEGE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2017

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
The following principal accounting policies have been applied:

g)

Income and endowments
All income and endowments are recognised when the criteria of entitlement, measurement and probability of
receipt have been satisfied.
Tuition and boarding fees, less any allowances, bursaries or scholarships awarded, are recognised in the period in
which the service is provided.
Trading income, including Commissariat sales, transport services and other trading, is recognised in the period in
which the goods are sold or the services are provided.
Grants, investment income, including interest receivable and other miscellaneous income are accounted for on a
receivable basis.
Voluntary income, comprising donations and distributions from The Dulwich Estate are accounted for on a received
basis. Gift Aid and legacies are recognised on a receivable basis, when the conditions of entitlement, certainty and
measurement are met.
Income from the endowment funds is split between restricted and unrestricted funds as follows: income from the
Dulwich College Awards Fund, the Bursary Appeal Fund and the Dulwich College Facilities Fund is included in
restricted funds; income from the Dulwich Schools Common Investment Fund and the Dulwich College Investment
Fund is included in unrestricted funds.

h)

Expenditure
Expenditure is recognised as soon as the related liability is incurred and has been classified under headings that
aggregate all costs relating to that category. Liabilities are recognised as soon as there is a legal or constructive
obligation committing the College to the expenditure.
Expenditure on raising funds comprises trading costs (principally the expenditure of Dulwich College Enterprises
Limited and Dulwich College Enterprises Overseas Limited), fundraising costs and finance costs. Finance costs
comprise interest payable, bad debts, discounts allowed and depreciation.
Expenditure on charitable activities comprises expenditure directly related to the provision of education.
Support costs represent indirect costs relating to raising funds and the College’s charitable activities. Support costs,
including governance costs, are allocated to activities on bases that represent the Governors’ best estimate of actual
use. The bases used to allocate costs to the above categories of expenditure are set out in note 8.
Governance costs comprise the costs of running the charity, including strategic planning for its future development,
auditors’ remuneration, Clerk’s office costs, certain legal costs and all costs of complying with constitutional and
statutory requirements, such as costs of Board meetings and of preparing the statutory accounts.
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DULWICH COLLEGE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2017

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

i)

Tangible Fixed Assets and Depreciation
Tangible fixed assets are initially recognised at cost. Items of furniture, apparatus and equipment, other than
computers, costing less than £10,000 are charged against income in the year of purchase. Computer equipment
costing less than £500 is charged against income in the year of purchase.
In 1995 the net book value of the buildings was transferred to the College, now Dulwich College Trust, from The
Dulwich Estate and in accordance with that Scheme forms part of the endowment funds. The transferred net book
value consisted of expenditure on building developments since 1944. Following the incorporation of the College,
the endowed buildings have remained the property of Dulwich College Trust in accordance with the Charity
Commission Scheme dated 30 January 2014. The Governors confirm that information relating to building
developments prior to 1944 is not readily available as the College had at that time an accounting policy to write off
any capital expenditure on buildings. Such buildings are treated as inalienable as the College is unable to dispose of
them as they are endowed. The current valuation for insurance is £121.8 million (2016: £118.2 million), which
reflects the cost of replacement of the buildings as new and excludes the value of land.
Depreciation is provided on fixed assets to write off their cost less estimated residual value over their estimated
useful economic life by equal annual instalments as follows:
College Buildings:
‐
Building
50 years
‐
Roof
20 years
‐
Building services and fixtures
10 to 20 years
Computer equipment
4 to 5 years
Fixtures, fittings, equipment and vehicles
3 to 5 years
Leasehold property additions have been depreciated in order to write off their cost over the period of the lease.
The carrying values of tangible fixed assets are reviewed for impairment in accordance with the requirements of
FRS102.

j)

Investments
Investments held for the long‐term to generate income or capital growth are carried at fair value as fixed assets.
Realised gains are the difference between sales proceeds and the carrying value of the investment. The carrying
value is the fair value at the beginning of the year or the purchase cost where the investment was acquired during
the year.
Unrealised gains are the change in value of investments after taking into account any movements in investment
holdings such as purchases and disposals of investments.
Realised and unrealised gains are accounted for within the Statement of Financial Activities.

k)

Stock
Stocks comprise finished goods and are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
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DULWICH COLLEGE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2017

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

l)

Financial instruments
Basic financial instruments transactions that result in the recognition of financial assets and liabilities such as trade
and other accounts receivable and payable are accounted for on the following basis:
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at banks, other short‐term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts, when applicable, are shown
within current liabilities.
Debtors and creditors
Debtors and creditors are measured at the transaction price less any provision for impairment. Any losses arising
from impairment are recognised as expenditure.
Bank borrowings
Liabilities for borrowings which are subject to a market rate of interest are measured at the value of the amount
advanced, less capital repayments.
Advance Fees Fund
The College has an advance fees scheme whereby parents and others make advance payments, which together with
the discount accruing thereon, provide for a set contribution each term towards the pupils’ fees.
The capital portion outstanding is recognised as a liability and the amount of discount crystallised in the year is
included in the Statement of Financial Activities.

m)

Pensions
Contributions are made for staff to the Department for Education Teachers Pension Scheme (“TPS”), the London
Pensions Partnership (“LPP”, formerly the London Pension Fund Authority, “LPFA”) Local Government Pension
Scheme and the Dulwich College Pension Plan. For the purposes of complying with relevant accounting standards
the TPS is accounted for as a defined contribution scheme, as the College is not responsible for or entitled to receive
benefit from any surplus or deficit of the scheme. The LPP scheme is a defined benefit scheme and the Dulwich
College Pension Plan is a defined contribution scheme.
The LPP scheme is accounted for as a defined benefit scheme in accordance with section 28 of FRS102, with the
annually calculated notional surplus or deficit on the funding of the scheme shown as a designated fund entitled
“Pension Reserve”, which is deducted from unrestricted funds in the balance sheet. Service costs, curtailments,
settlement gains and losses, net financial returns and remeasurement gains and losses are included in the Statement
of Financial Activities in the year to which they relate.
Changes in the assets and liabilities of the scheme in the year are disclosed and allocated as follows:


Changes relating to current or past service costs and gains and losses on settlements and curtailments and
pension finance costs arising from changes in the net of the interest costs and expected return on assets, are
allocated to the relevant activity heading based on staff costs of employees within the scheme.



Pension finance charges arising from similar changes are recognised as outgoing resources.



Remeasurement gains and losses arising are recognised as other recognised gains and losses.

The assets, liabilities and movements in the surplus or deficit of the scheme are calculated by qualified independent
actuaries as an update to the latest full actuarial valuation.
Details of the scheme assets and liabilities and major assumptions are shown in note 20.
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1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

n)

Leases
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to income on a straight line basis over the lease term.

o)

Funds
General funds comprise the accumulated surplus or deficit from the Statement of Financial Activities which is neither
restricted nor designated funds. They are available for use at the discretion of the Governors in furtherance of the
general objectives of the charity.
Designated funds comprise funds that have been set aside at the discretion of the Governors for specific purposes.
The purpose and use of the designated unrestricted funds are set out in the notes to the accounts.
Restricted income funds comprise unexpended balances of donations and grants held in trust to be applied for
specific purposes.
Permanent endowment funds comprise trust funds which are subject to specific trusts declared by the donors or
with their authority. The condition of the trust is that the capital element is not expendable. The income arising
from the investments is applied only in accordance with the conditions imposed by the donors (where specified) or
for the general purposes of the College. In addition the endowed funds include additions to the endowed land and
buildings given to the College (see note 1i).

2.

FEES RECEIVABLE

a)

Fees receivable consist of:
Day fees
Boarding fees
Other fees
Less ‐ discounts and staff allowances

2017
£

2016
£

32,199,826
2,079,082
324,012
(1,090,380)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£33,512,540
============

31,317,691
2,005,784
259,649
(1,142,376)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£32,440,748
============

826,998
117,785
2,262,328
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
3,207,111

788,928
120,376
2,105,484
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
3,014,788

86,531
356,607
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£3,650,249
==========

83,076
310,340
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£3,408,204
==========

86,531
356,607
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£443,138
=========

83,076
310,340
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£393,416
=========

Grants, awards and prizes consist of:
Amounts funded by the College from general unrestricted funds:
Scholarships and prizes
Scholarships to boys with bursaries
Bursaries

Amounts paid by other funds:
Scholarships and prizes
Bursaries

b)

The total scholarships, prizes and bursaries received from other funds consist of:
Restricted ‐ Dulwich College Awards Fund
Restricted ‐ Bursary Appeal Fund
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3.

OTHER INCOME

2017
£

Activities in the furtherance of the charity’s objects:
Staff rents
Other

4.

161,982
52,272
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£214,254
=========

THE DULWICH ESTATE DISTRIBUTIONS

Estate income distribution
Estate capital distribution

5.

INVESTMENT INCOME

Listed stocks and equities

6.

2016
£
159,360
48,343
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£207,743
=========

2017
£

2016
£

2,396,138
3,597,700
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£5,993,838
==========

2,383,230
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£2,383,230
===========

2017
£

2016
£

£887,390
==========

£827,136
==========

INCOME FROM TRADING SUBSIDIARIES
The College has two wholly owned trading subsidiaries, Dulwich College Enterprises Limited (DCE) and Dulwich College
Enterprises Overseas Limited (DCEO). DCE’s principal activities in the year were the letting of College facilities, the
operation of the Commissariat (the school shop), the operation of a sports club and an outdoor centre and the provision
of transport for pupils to and from the Dulwich schools. DCEO’s principal activity was the licensing of the name and
intellectual property of Dulwich College to Dulwich College Management International (DCMI), a company which runs a
number of international schools. Both companies donate their taxable profits to Dulwich College. The subsidiaries’ trading
results for the year, as extracted from the audited financial statements, are summarised below:
DCE
Profit and loss account
Turnover
Expenditure
Trading profit
Gift/covenant to Dulwich College
Retained in subsidiary

DCEO

2017
£

2016
£

2017
£

2016
£

3,256,842
(3,119,988)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
136,854
(135,983)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£871
==========

3,241,702
(3,073,658)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
168,044
(166,982)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£1,062
=========

1,422,578
(497,896)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
924,682
(924,682)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£Nil
==========

1,211,031
(452,152)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
758,879
(758,879)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£Nil
=========
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7.

STAFF COSTS

2017
£

Total resources expended include:
Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension contributions
Pension scheme cost

19,575,247
1,886,133
2,608,843
1,093,000
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£25,163,223
============

2016
£
19,392,634
1,673,514
2,253,071
716,000
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£24,035,219
============

The full‐time equivalent average number of employees for the year was 442 (2016: 434) of which 193 (2016: 188) were
teaching staff, 69 (2016: 69) were teaching support staff, 17 (2016: 17) were kindergarten assistants and 163 (2016: 160)
were other support staff. The average number of employees for the year on a headcount basis was 574 (2016: 563).
Included in total staff costs are termination payments amounting to £Nil (2016: £35,238).
The aggregate remuneration of the College’s key management personnel, comprising the Governors and the College
Leadership Team, amounted to £979,906 (2016: £974,638).

The number of employees whose emoluments exceeded £60,000 were:
£60,001 ‐ £70,000
£70,001 ‐ £80,000
£80,001 ‐ £90,000
£90,001 ‐ £100,000
£100,001 ‐ £110,000
£130,001 ‐ £140,000
£190,001 ‐ £200,000
£210,001 ‐ £220,000

2017
No.

2016
No.

38
15
7
2
2
1
‐
1
====

44
13
4
5
1
1
1
‐
====

The number of higher paid employees for whom defined benefit pension scheme contributions were made was 63 (2016:
66).
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8.

ANALYSIS OF TOTAL EXPENDITURE

Staff costs
£
Raising funds
Lettings, events and sports
club costs
Transport and commissariat
costs
International Schools costs
Fundraising costs
Finance costs
Charitable activities
Teaching costs
Welfare and catering costs
Premises costs
Boarding and medical costs
Grants, awards and prizes

Allocated
support
costs
£

Direct
costs
£

Depreciation
£

2017
Total
£

2016
Total
£

883,897

310,559

45,077

5,235

1,244,768

1,125,252

346,082
48,372
292,711
35,606

962,070
33,298
103,950
435,772

45,396
2,011
18,479
1,392

1,570
‐
‐
‐

1,355,118
83,681
415,140
472,770

1,276,507
88,180
400,124
531,435

10,768,313
2,353,181
589,349
318,934
22,029,777
21,111,860
1,269,282
666,862
66,060
39,049
2,041,253
2,132,111
2,823,618
3,247,520
185,459
3,073,139
9,329,736
8,876,273
695,342
376,275
25,654
5,063
1,102,334
1,090,213
‐
443,138
‐
‐
443,138
393,416
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£25,163,223
£8,932,625
£978,877
£3,442,990
£38,517,715 £37,025,371
============
===========
=========
===========
============
============
Staff costs include both direct staff costs and allocated support staff costs. Direct costs include both direct costs and
directly attributed support costs.
Resources expended include:

2017
£

Support costs (including management and administration):
Staff costs allocated to activities
Costs directly attributed to activities
Costs allocated to activities

Support costs are allocated as follows:
Lettings, events and
sports club costs
£
Allocated staff costs
Directly attributed costs
Allocated costs:
Post, phone & printing
Advertising for staff
Computer expenses
Hospitality
Professional fees
Other expenses

Transport and
commissariat costs
£

International
Schools costs
£

2016
£

3,485,772
796,257
978,877
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£5,260,906
===========

3,026,344
876,185
879,876
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£4,782,405
===========

Fundraising
costs
£

Finance
costs
£

£211,904
========
£Nil
========

£100,408
========
£100
========

£4,568
=======
£2,275
=======

£292,711
=========
£103,950
=========

£35,606
========
£Nil
========

12,814
1,942
1,299
4,089
17,437
7,496
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£45,077
========

5,016
4,130
390
1,612
12,778
21,470
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£45,396
========

185
39
‐
216
860
711
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£2,011
========

1,271
2,245
‐
9,598
3,719
1,646
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£18,479
========

880
25
‐
‐
44
443
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£1,392
========
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8.

ANALYSIS OF EXPENDITURE (continued)

Allocated staff costs
Directly attributed costs
Allocated costs:
Post, phone & printing
Advertising for staff
Computer expenses
Hospitality
Professional fees
Other expenses

Teaching
costs
£

Welfare and
catering costs
£

Premises
costs
£

Boarding and
medical costs
£

£1,615,973
=========
£483,136
=========

£268,797
========
£71,242
========

£723,907
=========
£20,905
=========

£231,898
========
£114,649
========

325,565
7,970
77,305
101,127
24,721
52,661
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£589,349
=========

4,880
12,685
1,299
6,735
25,537
14,924
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£66,060
========

16,044
11,657
1,299
14,914
67,459
74,086
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£185,459
========

3,092
762
1,299
2,406
11,209
6,886
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£25,654
========

2017
£
Finance costs
Interest payable
Bank charges
Allocated staff costs
Allocated support costs

Premises costs
Fuel, light & facilities
Maintenance of buildings
Upkeep of grounds
Rent, rate & insurance
Allocated staff costs
Allocated support costs
Depreciation

Auditors’ remuneration
‐ for audit
‐ for other services
Operating lease rentals
Governors’ expenses reimbursed

2016
£

415,949
19,823
35,606
1,392
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£472,770
=========

445,231
47,170
36,572
2,463
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£531,436
=========

2,170,317
1,773,466
816,830
565,713
723,907
206,364
3,073,139
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£9,329,736
==========

2,055,127
1,764,014
743,077
493,022
525,561
298,698
2,996,774
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£8,876,273
==========

35,450
1,775
373,169
145
========

34,140
3,236
358,419
75
========

None of the Governors received any remuneration during the year (2016: £Nil).
9.

TAXATION
As a registered charity, the College is not liable to income tax or corporation tax on income or gains derived from its
charitable activities.
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10.

FIXED ASSETS – Group

Cost
At 1 August 2016
Additions
Disposals
At 31 July 2017
Depreciation
At 1 August 2016
Charge for the year
Disposals
At 31 July 2017
Net book value
At 31 July 2017
At 31 July 2016

Freehold
Buildings
£

Leasehold
Buildings
£

Computer
Equipment
£

Fixtures, Fittings
& Vehicles
£

Total
£

64,510,914
5,883,783
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
70,394,697
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

6,777,845
‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
6,777,845
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

3,230,217
520,583
(256,973)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
3,493,827
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

6,454,540
583,019
(48,835)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
6,988,724
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

80,973,516
6,987,385
(305,808)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
87,655,093
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

18,882,172
2,305,458
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
21,187,630
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

4,085,701
233,843
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
4,319,544
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

2,523,840
341,443
(256,973)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
2,608,310
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

4,907,884
562,246
(48,835)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
5,421,295
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

30,339,597
3,442,990
(305,808)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
33,536,779
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

£49,207,067
===========
£45,628,742
===========

£2,458,301
===========
£2,692,144
===========

£885,517
=========
£706,377
=========

£1,567,429
===========
£1,546,656
===========

£54,118,314
============
£50,573,919
============

The fixed assets include an amount of £4,012,755 (2016: £462,237) in respect of freehold buildings not yet in use, which
have therefore not been depreciated.

Fixed assets are analysed
between funds as follows:
Endowment
General
At 31 July 2017

Freehold &
Leasehold
Buildings
£

Computer
Equipment
£

Fixtures, Fittings,
Equipment &
Vehicles
£

Total
£

47,431,235
4,234,133
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£51,665,368
===========

‐
885,517
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£885,517
=========

‐
1,567,429
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£1,567,429
==========

47,431,235
6,687,079
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£54,118,314
============

Fixed assets relating to the company amounted to £5,709,493 (2016: £5,612,960) and are wholly used for the direct
charitable purposes.
2017
£
Amounts contracted for, relating to future capital
expenditure, at the year end

£11,432,000
===========
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2016
£
£Nil
===========
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11.

INVESTMENTS – Group and Charity

Cost
2017
£

a)

2017
£

2016
£

The group and charity investments are
summarised below:
Dulwich College investments (note 11b)
Share of Dulwich Schools Common
Investment Fund (note 11c)

b)

Fair Value
2016
£

25,354,194

22,294,768

35,586,525

30,463,708

39,479
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£25,393,673
============

39,479
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£22,334,247
============

3,628
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
35,590,153
============

3,628
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£30,467,336
============

Dulwich College investments
Cost
2017
£
Charities Funds
Investment in Dulwich College Management
International Limited
Investment in Dulwich Services Limited

Fair Value
2016
£

2017
£

2016
£

25,353,918

22,294,492

35,586,249

30,463,432

275
1
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£25,354,194
============

275
1
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£22,294,768
============

275
1
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£35,586,525
============

275
1
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£30,463,708
===========

Of the Charities Funds investments listed above £655,605 (2016: £401,809) is held by the College and the remainder of the
group investments are held by Dulwich College Trust.
2017
2016
£
£
At 1 August 2016
Additions
Disposals
Net gains

30,463,708
7,149,510
(4,670,000)
2,643,307
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£35,586,525
============

At 31 July 2017
c)

27,917,420
4,577,792
(3,280,792)
1,249,288
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£30,463,708
===========

The Dulwich Schools Common Investment Fund
The College holds one share in Dulwich Services Limited which is the corporate trustee of the Dulwich Schools Common
Investment Fund (DSCIF).
Following approval of the Scheme by the Charity Commissioners on 31 July 1995 in relation to the charities, Dulwich
College, Alleyn's School and James Allen's Girls' School, the three schools agreed to pool the investments and monies
transferred to them at the time by the Trustees of The Dulwich Estate (previously the Estates Governors of Alleyn's College
of God's Gift) into the Dulwich Schools Common Investment Fund. The Fund was itself subsequently approved by the
Charity Commissioners as a Scheme under the Charities Act 1993, Section 24.
Following the decision to wind up DSCIF in the year ended 31 July 2003, the shares of the fund at 31 July represent the
small holding in an agricultural unit trust managed by BAML. Discussions with BAML about its treatment are continuing
and once this has been resolved DSCIF will be wound up.
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12.

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS – Charity

2017
£

Investment in Dulwich College Enterprises Limited
Investment in Dulwich College Enterprises Overseas Limited

3
1
=======

The balance sheets of the companies are summarised as follows:
Dulwich College
Enterprises Limited
2017
2016
Balance sheet
£
£
Fixed assets
‐
‐
Current assets
442,336
452,917
Creditors
(313,807)
(325,259)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
Net assets
£128,529
£127,658
=========
=========

2016
£
3
1
======

Dulwich College
Enterprises Overseas Limited
2017
2016
£
£
275
275
283,024
201,199
(283,298)
(201,473)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£1
£1
=========
=========

The College owns the entire share capital of Dulwich College Enterprises Limited which comprises 3 £1 shares. The
company was incorporated in England and Wales (company number: 03039344) on 29 March 1996 and commenced
trading on 1 April 1996. As at 31 July 2017 the company owed the College £81,753 (2016: £70,067). This usual trading
balance is included within net current assets in the charity and company balance sheets.
The College owns the entire share capital of Dulwich College Enterprises Overseas Limited which consists of 1 £1 ordinary
share. The company was incorporated in England and Wales (company number: 06294794) on 27 June 2007 and
commenced trading in September 2010. As at 31 July 2017 the company owed the College £265,062 (2016: £188,773).
This usual trading balance is included within net current assets in the charity and company balance sheets.
13.

STOCK

Group

College Commissariat:
Sports goods
Books and stationery
Other

14.

DEBTORS

Tuition and boarding fees
Other debtors
Prepayments and accrued income
Dulwich College Enterprises Limited
Dulwich College Enterprises Overseas Limited
Inter‐fund loan (due from Dulwich College Trust)

2016
£

141,166
13,559
31,495
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£186,220
========

134,679
9,147
20,822
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£164,648
=========

2017
£

2016
£

2017
£

32,402
183,014
391,135
‐
‐

10,314
242,164
402,881
‐
‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£655,359
========

32,402
43,506
313,783
81,753
265,062
567,102
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£1,303,608
=========

‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£606,551
=========
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Company
2017
£

2017
£

‐
‐
12,744
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£12,744
========

2016
£
‐
‐
8,698
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£8,698
=========
2016
£

10,314
58,774
327,051
70,067
188,773
2,251,682
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£2,906,661
==========
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15.

CREDITORS: amounts falling due
within one year

Group

Bank overdraft
Bank loans (note 16)
Fee deposits
Tax, National Insurance and Pensions
Other creditors
Amounts due on capital projects
Accruals and deferred income

16.

Company

2017
£

2016
£

‐
782,997
2,621,817
68,530
349,102
1,702,735
1,659,886
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£7,185,067
===========

268,478
744,449
2,350,687
940,781
299,847
1,239,557
1,383,804
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£7,227,603
==========

LOANS FOR BUILDINGS

Development
Loans

At 1 August 2016
Repaid in the year

4,840,668
(575,899)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£4,264,769
==========

At 31 July 2017

2017
£
‐
710,997
2,621,817
115,506
273,131
1,702,735
1,518,978
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£6,943,164
===========
Non endowment
Loans
£
2,703,776
(168,552)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£2,535,224
==========
2017
£

Falling due for repayment:
‐ two to five years
‐ thereafter

3,563,999
2,452,997
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
6,016,996
782,997
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£6,799,993
===========

‐ within one year (note 15)

2016
£
268,478
672,449
2,350,687
957,450
209,937
1,239,557
1,225,253
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£6,923,811
==========

Total
£
7,544,444
(744,451)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£6,799,993
===========
2016
£
3,385,834
3,414,161
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
6,799,995
744,449
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£7,544,444
===========

Details of the above loans are as follows:
Development loans

‐ Outstanding balance of £684,039 unsecured.
The capital is repayable by 2022 in equal instalments three times per annum starting in
February 2008. Interest is payable at a fixed rate of 6.07%
‐ Outstanding balance of £1,497,986 unsecured.
The capital is repayable by 2023 in equal instalments three times per annum starting in
February 2009. Interest is payable at a fixed rate of 5.88%.
‐ Outstanding balance of £2,082,744 unsecured.
The capital is repayable by 2023 in equal instalments three times per annum starting in
February 2009. Interest is payable at a fixed rate of 5.53%.
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16.

LOANS FOR BUILDINGS (continued)
Non‐endowment property loans ‐ Outstanding balance of £1,351,331 secured over the freehold deeds of Old Blew
House. The capital is repayable by October 2029 in equal instalments four times per
annum starting in July 2007. Interest is payable at a fixed rate of 6.03%.
‐ Outstanding balance of £229,893 secured over the freehold deeds of Old Blew House.
The capital is repayable by 2029 in equal instalments four times per annum starting in
July 2007. Interest is payable at a variable rate of base rate plus a margin of 0.69%.
‐ Outstanding balance of £874,500 secured over the freehold deeds of Elm Lawn and
Chestnuts. The capital is repayable by 2030 in equal instalments four times per annum
starting in November 2006. Interest is payable at a fixed rate of 5.44%
‐ Outstanding balance of £79,500 secured over the freehold deeds of Elm Lawn and
Chestnuts. The capital is repayable by 2030 in equal instalments four times per annum
starting in December 2006. Interest is payable at a fixed interest rate of 5.27%.

17.

OTHER CREDITORS – Group and Charity

2017
£

Advance fees
Fee deposits

Falling due for repayment:
‐ two to five years
‐ thereafter

18.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

1,806,439
1,763,664
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£3,570,103
===========

1,570,221
1,583,818
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£3,154,039
===========

2,894,273
675,830
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£3,570,103
===========

2,297,605
856,434
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£3,154,039
==========

Group
2017
£

Financial assets measured at fair value

2016
£

Company
2016
£

£35,590,153 £30,467,336
============ ============
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
£8,558,766
£7,661,292
============ ============
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
£10,834,576 £12,407,749
============ ============
Financial assets measured at fair value comprise listed investments.

2017
£
£655,601
===========
£7,623,013
===========
£11,504,605
===========

2016
£
£401,805
===========
£6,466,016
===========
£11,291,839
===========

Financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise debtors, cash and investments in subsidiary undertakings.
Financial liabilities measured at amortised costs comprise bank loans and overdraft, fee deposits and other creditors.
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19.

FUNDS

a)

The net assets of the company and of the group are held for the various funds as follows:
Unrestricted Funds
Pension
Endowment
Restricted
Reserve
Designated
General
£
£
£
£
£
Tangible fixed assets
Investments
Net other assets
Bank loan
Pension fund deficit
Company total

Tangible fixed assets
Investments
Dulwich Schools Common
Investment Funds
Capital donations (cash)
Net other assets
Bank loan
Pension fund deficit
Inter‐fund loan
Group total

‐
‐
1,960,074
‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£1,960,074
===========

‐
‐
11,675
‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£11,675
==========

47,431,235
34,904,296

‐
26,353

3,628
3,597,700
133,275
(4,264,769)
‐
(567,102)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£81,238,263
===========

‐
‐
10,086
‐
‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£36,439
==========

‐
‐
‐
‐
(13,704,000)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£(13,704,000)
===========
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
(13,704,000)
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£(13,704,000)
===========

‐
5,709,493
655,330
275
13,864 (4,152,130)
‐
(5,845,993)
‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
669,194 £(4,288,355)
=========
==========

Total
£
5,709,493
655,605
(2,166,517)
(5,845,993)
(13,704,000)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£(15,351,412)
===========

‐
655,601

6,687,079
275

54,118,314
35,586,525

‐
‐
13,593
‐
‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£669,194
=========

‐
‐
(4,590,706)
(2,535,224)
‐
567,102
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£128,526
==========

3,628
3,597,700
(4,433,752)
(6,799,993)
(13,704,000)
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£68,368,422
===========

At 31 July 2017 the group funds comprised:
Unrestricted Funds
Endowment
£
Dulwich Schools Common
Investment Fund
Buildings Fund
Dulwich College
Investment Fund
Dulwich College
Awards Fund
Bursary Appeal Fund
Dulwich College
Facilities Fund
Pension Reserve
General Fund

Restricted
£

Pension
Reserve
£

Designated
£

General
£

Total
£

3,628
31,982,589

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

‐
‐

3,628
31,982,589

36,794,927

‐

‐

‐

‐

36,794,927

1,352,704
11,104,415

24,764
5,454

‐
‐

‐
669,194

‐
‐

1,377,468
11,779,063

‐
‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£669,194
=========

‐
‐
128,526
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£128,526
==========

‐
‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£81,238,263
===========

6,221
‐
‐
(13,704,000)
‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£36,439 £(13,704,000)
=========
===========

6,221
(13,704,000)
128,526
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£68,368,422
===========

The Bursary Appeal Fund comprises both capital endowment and restricted income donations, along with amounts
designated by Governors from unrestricted funds. The balances also take account of gains and losses on investments and
unspent investment income.
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19. FUNDS (continued)
b)

Endowment fund movements during the year were as follows:

Dulwich College
Awards Fund
Dulwich Schools Common
Investment Fund
Dulwich College
Investment Fund
Buildings Fund
Bursary Appeal Fund

At 1 August
2016
£

Income
£

816,743

1,424

3,628

‐

Transfers
£

Investment
Gains
£

At 31 July
2017
£

‐

458,636

75,901

1,352,704

‐

‐

‐

3,628

Expenditure
£

31,434,751
3,616,450
‐
‐
1,743,726
36,794,927
28,897,143
‐
(2,410,518)
5,495,964
‐
31,982,589
9,937,964
424,841
‐
‐
741,610
11,104,415
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£71,090,229 £4,042,715 £(2,410,518)
£5,954,600
£2,561,237 £81,238,263
===========
==========
===========
==========
=========
===========
The Dulwich College Awards Fund (DCAF) was set up on 18 April 1995 in order to pool together all of the College’s sundry
scholarship, prize and miscellaneous trust funds within one scheme. During the year, £458,636 was transferred from
restricted funds to endowment funds in order to align with the wishes of the donor.
The details in relation to the Dulwich Schools Common Investment Fund (DSCIF) are disclosed in note 11.
The Dulwich College Investment Fund was set up in April 2003 in order to hold the investments returned from the DSCIF to
be held directly by the College.
In accordance with the 1995 Scheme the Buildings Fund was set up as a result of a transfer of the net book value of buildings
in 1995 from The Dulwich Estate. The Governors agreed, after seeking Charity Commission approval, to account for the
fund as follows.
Additions on endowment buildings result in a transfer of funds from unrestricted funds to the Buildings Fund, unless a
deficit would arise on the unrestricted funds where an inter‐fund loan is established between the unrestricted fund and the
Buildings Fund until such time as the unrestricted fund has sufficient resources to make the transfer. Bank loans and other
short term borrowings for the purposes of improving the permanent endowment land and buildings are allowed to be set
off against the Buildings Fund. Depreciation on endowment buildings is now charged against the Buildings Fund.
In accordance with this policy £4,597,699 (2016: £4,589,226) was transferred from unrestricted funds to the Buildings Fund
in the year.
In addition, £662,052 (2016: £1,000,003) was transferred from restricted funds to the Buildings Fund, in respect of the
Dulwich College Facilities Fund money spent on the Science facilities and other developments and there were designations
to the Buildings Fund of £236,213 (2016: £Nil) in the year.
The Bursary Appeal Fund comprises accumulated donations to provide an income stream to give financial support to
parents whose sons have been awarded a place at the College but who cannot afford the full fees. All endowed donations
received in the year have been included within this fund. In accordance with the donor’s wishes £30,000 was transferred
from restricted funds to endowment funds.
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19. FUNDS (continued)
c)

Restricted fund movements during the year were as follows:
At 1 August
2016
£
Dulwich College
Awards Fund
Bursary Appeal Fund
Dulwich College
Facilities Fund

Investment
Gains
£

At 31 July
2017
£

Income
£

Expenditure
£

Transfers
£

426,968
15,360

83,642
346,701

(78,232)
(386,607)

(458,636)
‐

51,022
‐

24,764
5,454

14,450
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£456,778
==========

662,122
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£1,092,465
==========

(8,299)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£(443,138)
=========

(662,052)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£(1,120,688)
==========

‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£51,022
========

6,221
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£36,439
===========

The Dulwich College Awards Fund (DCAF) was set up on 18 April 1995 in order to pool together all of the College’s sundry
scholarship, prize and miscellaneous trust funds within one scheme.
The Bursary Appeal Fund comprises accumulated donations to give financial support to parents whose sons have been
awarded a place at the College but who cannot afford the full fees. All restricted income donations received in the year have
been included in this fund.
The Dulwich College Facilities Fund comprises donations received to help fund facilities developments less money spent on
facilities developments. The balance at 31 July 2017 represents donations to support Music at the College.
d)

Unrestricted fund movements during the year were as follows:
At
1 August
2016

General Fund
Advance Fees Fund
Pension Reserve
Bursary Appeal Fund

Income

Expenditure

£

£

£

127,655
‐
(15,137,000)
413,777
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£(14,595,568)
============

39,630,211
‐
‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£39,630,211
============

(34,529,265)
(41,794)
(1,093,000)
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£(35,664,059)
============

Transfers
£
(5,100,075)
41,794
‐
224,369
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£(4,833,912)
===========

Investment
Gains/
(Losses)
£

At 31 July
2017

‐
‐
2,526,000
31,048
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£2,557,048
===========

128,526
‐
(13,704,000)
669,174
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£(12,906,280)
============

£

As agreed by the Governors in 2000 the balance of the Advance Fees Fund is transferred annually to the General Fund as the
Governors do not wish to hold a balance in this fund.
The Bursary Appeal Fund represents designations made by Governors to the fund. The transfer of £224,369 (2016: £191,854)
represents £148,962 of the increased income from DCEO in line with a policy agreed by Governors, £16,025 of the income
distribution from The Dulwich Estate that was not spent on bursaries during the year, £33,547 to fund staff bursaries and
£21,835 of other donations designated to the fund.
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20. PENSION ARRANGEMENTS
The College participates in three pension schemes.
The main scheme is administered by Teachers' Pensions, an executive agency of the Department for Education (DfE).
Contributions to the scheme are determined by the Government Actuary and paid over to the Exchequer. Contribution rates
for employees range from 7.4% to 11.7% (2016: 7.4% to 11.7%) depending on their salary. Current employer contributions
are 16.48% (2016: 16.48%).
The second scheme is a defined benefit scheme for operational staff and is administered by the London Pensions Partnership
(formerly London Pension Fund Authority) in accordance with the rules and valuations of the scheme. Contribution rates for
employees range from 5.5% to 12.5% (2016: 5.5% to 12.5%) depending on their salary. Current employer contributions are
19.55% (2016: 23.1%). This scheme was closed to new members on 31 July 2010.
The third scheme is a defined contribution scheme for operational staff opened on 1 August 2010 with Friends Life.
Contribution rates for employees range from 4% to 6% depending on their salary, with corresponding employer contributions
of 4% to 8%.
The annual commitment under the three schemes is for contributions of £2,533,000 (2016: £2,663,000). Contributions
totalling £340,256 (2016: £360,475) were payable to the schemes at the year end.
The defined benefit scheme was always a joint scheme for the College and its subsidiary undertaking. From 31 July 2006,
the contracts of employment of the staff of Dulwich College Enterprises Limited were transferred to Dulwich College to
simplify the pension arrangements.
As a result of this change, the responsibility for meeting the pension obligations rests with Dulwich College. The on‐going
costs, however, are met by Dulwich College Enterprises Limited through a secondment arrangement. Dulwich College
Enterprises Limited has obtained actuarial advice to quantify its liability using transfer values and using this information has
estimated the quantum of the contingent liability (net of assets) to be in the region of £150,000, based on the actuarial
valuation in 2004.
Governors have received actuarial advice. The overall expected rate of return on assets is based on the long term future
expected investment return for each asset class as at the beginning of the year.
2017
2016
Analysis of amounts charged to activity cost categories:
£
£
Charitable expenditure operating costs
Service cost
1,468,000
1,162,000
Administration expenses
24,000
25,000
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£1,492,000
£1,187,000
=========
=========
£
£
Finance cost
Net interest on the defined benefit liability
£383,000
£357,000
=========
=========
Remeasurement of the defined benefit liability:
Return on fund assets in excess of interest
(2,333,000)
(259,000)
Other actuarial losses on assets
567,000
‐
Change in demographic assumptions
(347,000)
‐
Experience gain on defined benefit obligation
(2,258,000)
‐
Change in financial assumptions
1,845,000
4,881,000
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
Total remeasurement (gain)/loss
£(2,526,000)
£4,622,000
==========
=========
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20. PENSION ARRANGEMENTS (continued)
Changes in present value of the defined benefits obligation are as follows:

Opening defined benefit obligation
Current service cost
Interest cost
Contributions
Change in financial assumptions
Change in demographic assumptions
Experience gain on defined benefit obligation
Benefits paid

Changes in fair value plan assets are as follows:

Opening fair value of employer assets
Interest on assets
Return on assets less interest
Other actuarial losses
Administration expenses
Contributions by members
Contributions by employer
Benefits paid
Closing fair value of employer assets

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

33,449
1,468
866
271
1,845
(347)
(2,258)
(552)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£34,742
========

26,393
1,162
1,003
265
4,881
‐
‐
(255)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£33,449
========

2017
£’000

2016
£’000

18,312
483
2,333
(567)
(24)
271
782
(552)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£21,038
=======

16,594
646
259
‐
(25)
265
828
(255)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£18,312
=======

The major categories of plan assets are as follows:
% of
Total plan
2017
Scheme Assets
Equities
Target return portfolio
Cash flow matching assets
Cash
Infrastructure
Commodities
Property

61%
21%
0%
7%
5%
0%
7%

Group share of
Fund value at
31 July 2017
£’000
12,898
4,364
‐
1,458
948
‐
1,370
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£21,038
=======

Total

% of
Total plan
2016
51%
24%
9%
4%
1%
1%
4%

2017
£
Actual return on fund assets

£2,816,000
=========
45

Group share of
Fund value at
31 July 2016
£’000
9,420
4,453
1,600
762
1,294
98
685
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
£18,312
=======
2016
£
£905,000
==========
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20. PENSION ARRANGEMENTS (continued)
Per annum
2017

Actuarial assumptions used:
Salary increases
Pension increases
Discount rate

4.2%
2.7%
2.7%

Per annum
2016
4.0%
2.2%
2.6%

Mortality Assumptions
Post retirement mortality is based on Club Vita analysis which has then been projected using the Medium Cohort projection,
allowing for a minimum rate of improvement of 1%. Based on these assumptions, average future life expectancies at age
65 are summarised below:
31 July 2017

Males

Females

Current pensioners
Future pensioners

21.0
23.4

24.6
26.8

21.6
24.0

25.2
27.5

31 July 2016
Current pensioners
Future pensioners
21.

COMMITMENTS
At 31 July 2016 the College had annual commitments under operating leases as set out below:
2017
£
Operating leases which expire:
‐ within one year
‐ in two to five years
‐ in more than five years

47,725
212,651
226,018
========
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2016
£
45,449
278,041
228,304
========
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22. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Dulwich College is controlled by the Board of Governors.
Mr G N C Ward is a director of the corporate trustee, Dulwich Services Limited, which manages the affairs of Dulwich
Schools Common Investment Fund.
During the year Mr P L Hogarth and Dr A H Köttering were trustees of The Dulwich Estate, a registered charity. Mr P L
Hogarth resigned as a trustee of The Dulwich Estate on 31 October 2016. Dr I Bishop was appointed a trustee of The Dulwich
Estate on 1 November 2016.
Balances and transactions with Dulwich Schools Common Investment Fund include:
Investment share of the Fund £3,628 (2016: £3,628).
Transactions with The Dulwich Estate include:
Income distributions received £2,396,138 (2016: £2,383,220).
Capital distribution received £3,597,700 (2016: £Nil).
Property rent paid amounting to £227,970 (2016: £219,902).
Balances and transactions with Dulwich College Enterprises Limited include:
Amounts owed £81,753 (2016: £70,067).
Rent and other charges £479,627 (2016: £485,912).
Transport services used £540,535 (2016: £541,383).
Gift/covenant received £135,983 (2016: £166,982).
Balances and transactions with Dulwich College Enterprises Overseas Limited include:
Amounts owed £265,062 (2016: £188,773).
Management charges and royalties £424,280 (2016: £369,487).
Gift/covenant received £924,682 (2016: £758,879).
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23. COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
Unrestricted Funds
School
Other
£
£
INCOME AND ENDOWMENTS FROM:
Charitable activities
Fees receivable
Grants, awards and prizes
Net fees receivable
Catering income
Other income
Other trading income
Lettings and sports club income
Transport and commissariat income
International schools income
Voluntary income
The Dulwich Estate distributions
Donations received
Investments
Listed investments
Bank and other interest
Total income and endowments
EXPENDITURE ON:
Raising funds
Lettings and sports club costs
Transport and commissariat costs
International schools costs
Fundraising costs
Finance costs

Charitable Activities
Teaching costs

Welfare and catering costs
Premises costs
Boarding and medical costs
Grants, awards and prizes

Total expenditure
Net income before investment
gains/(losses) and transfers
Realised losses on investments
Unrealised gains on investments
Net income before transfers
Transfers between funds
NET INCOME carried forward

Restricted
Funds
£

Endowment
Funds
£

Total
2016
£

32,440,748
(3,014,788)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
29,425,960
1,561,969
207,743

‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
‐
‐
‐

1,575,770
1,259,945
1,211,031

‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐

‐
‐
‐

1,575,770
1,259,945
1,211,031

2,383,230
27,115

‐
‐

‐
1,002,934

‐
748,004

2,383,230
1,778,053

542,873
88,326
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
38,283,962
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

284,263
2,217
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
1,289,414
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
748,004
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

827,136
90,543
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
40,321,380
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

1,125,252
1,276,507
88,180
400,124
531,435
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
3,421,498
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

‐
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

1,125,252
1,276,507
88,180
400,124
531,435
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
3,421,498
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

21,074,333
2,132,111
6,462,138
1,090,213
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
30,758,795
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
34,180,293
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

37,527
‐
‐
‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
37,527
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
37,527
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

‐
‐
‐
‐
393,416
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
393,416
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
393,416
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

‐
‐
2,414,135
‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
2,414,135
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
2,414,135
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

21,111,860
2,132,111
8,876,273
1,090,213
393,416
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
33,603,873
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
37,025,371
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

4,103,669

(37,527)

895,998

(1,666,131)

3,296,009

‐
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
4,103,669
(4,818,607)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
(714,938)

‐
6,548
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
(30,979)
229,381
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
198,402

(349,062)
1,577,428
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
(437,765)
5,619,229
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
5,181,464

(349,062)
1,598,350
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
4,545,297
‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
4,545,297
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‐
14,374
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
910,372
(1,030,003)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
(119,631)

32,440,748
(3,014,788)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
29,425,960
1,561,969
207,743

DULWICH COLLEGE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
YEAR ENDED 31 JULY 2017

23. COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (continued)
Unrestricted funds
School
Other
£
£

NET INCOME brought forward
Pension scheme actuarial
losses
NET MOVEMENT IN FUNDS
Funds brought forward at 1 August
FUNDS CARRIED FORWARD
AT 31 JULY

Restricted
Funds
£

Endowment
Funds
£

Total
2016
£

(714,938)

198,402

(119,631)

5,181,464

4,545,297

(4,622,000)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
(5,336,938)

‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
198,402

‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
(119,631)

‐
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
5,181,464

(4,622,000)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐
(76,703)

(9,672,407)
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

215,375
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

576,409
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

65,908,765
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

57,028,142
‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐‐

£(15,009,345)
============

£413,777
========

£456,778
==========

£71,090,229
============

£56,951,439
===========
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